
CRABoard Meeting
October 26, 2023 

Spokane, Washington

2404 Chandler Court SW, Suite 240
Olympia, WA  98502

360-753-5989
www.crab.wa.gov



& Via Zoom (hybrid)
8:30 am - 4:30 pm

8:30 AM
Call to Order

Page #'s
1 Chair's Report - Commissioner Coffman

A. Approve October 26, 2023 Agenda Action Enclosure 1 - 2
B. Approve Minutes of July 27-28, 2023 CRABoard Meeting Action Enclosure 3 - 13
C. Set 2024 Meeting Schedule Action Enclosure 14

2
8:45 AM Public Hearing (8:45am) 15 - 17

i. Amending WAC 136-012, 136-14, and 136-20 to make changes to
the standards of good practice. Action Enclosure 18 - 21
ii. Amending WAC 136-130, 136-161, 136-165, and 136-180 to make
changes to the rural arterial program (RAP). Action Enclosure 22 - 28
iii. Amending WAC 136-400 to change outdated program titles. Action Enclosure 29 - 30

3 Rural Arterial Program - Steve Johnson, PE
A. Resolution 2023-009 - Apportion RATA Funds to Regions Action Enclosure 31
B. Project Board Actions

i. Chelan County - Wenatchee Heights Road Project "Borrow Forward" Action Enclosure 32 - 36
ii. Whitman County - Sand Road Project "Borrow Forward" Action Enclosure 37 - 39

C. Presentation on RAP Program Info 40
D. Consider a Call For Projects 2025-27 Biennium Action Enclosure 41 - 47

10:30 AM
4 County Presentations 48

A. Adams County - Scott Yaeger (CE); Todd O'Brien (PWD) Info
B. Lincoln County - Walt Olsen (interim CE); David Orvis (PWD) Info
C. Whitman County - Dean Cornelison (CE); Mark Storey (PWD) Info

12:00 PM Lunch Break

5 Executive Director's Report - Jane Wall
A. Approve Annual Certification Form Action Enclosure 49 - 50
B. Stratetgic Plan Update Info Enclosure 51
C. Director's Activities Info
D. 2024 Budget Request & Legislative Session Info

2:00 PM
6 Senate Transportion Committee Chair - Senator Liias Info 52

House Transportion Committee Chair - Representative Fey Info 52B

AGENDA
County Road Administration Board

Thursday, October 26, 2023
Spokane County Courthouse Building

Thursday 

Proposed WAC Changes:

Public Comment Period

1



7 Engineering Division Report - Drew Woods, PE
A. 2023-2025 Current Budget Status Info 53 - 68
B. 2023-2025 Supplemental Budget Request Info
C. Engineering Division Report Info Enclosure 69 - 93
D. Update on Conditional Certificates of Good Practice Info Enclosure 93B

coming later

8 IT Division Report - Eric Hagenlock Info Enclosure 94 - 98
Annual IT Certification Report

9 Info

10

ADJOURN

5:30 PM Board Dinner - Location: Steelhead Bar & Grill
218 N Howard St, Spokane, WA  99201

Friday County Road Projects Tour - Spokane County
8:30 AM Gather at Spokane County Public Works Building by 8:00-8:15am
12:00 PM Load bus by 8:15-8:30am, depart promptly by 8:30am!

12:00 PM Lunch for Bus Tour Participants - WSACE to host
1:00 PM

Chair:  _______________________________________

Attest:  _______________________________________

WSACE Managing Director Report - Axel Swanson

Possible Executive Session

Thursday (cont'd)

2



1 

Minutes 
County Road Administration Board 

July 27-28, 2023 
Kitsap County – Hampton Inn & Suites (Bremerton, WA) 

and Zoom participation 

Members Present: Rob Coffman, Lincoln County Commissioner, Chair 
Grant Morgan, PE, Garfield County Engineer, Vice-Chair 
Lindsey Pollock, Lewis County Commissioner, 2nd Vice Chair 
Doug McCormick, PE, Snohomish County Engineer (via Zoom 7/27 only) 
Eric Pierson, PE, Chelan County Engineer 
Al French, Spokane County Commissioner 
Art Swannack, Whitman County Commissioner 

Members Absent:  Brad Peck, Franklin County Commissioner 
Carolina Mejia, Thurston County Commissioner 

Staff Present:  Jane Wall, Executive Director 
Drew Woods, PE, Deputy Director 
Jason Bergquist, Executive Assistant 
Steve Johnson, PE, Grant Programs Manager 
Mike Clark, Road System Inventory Manager 
Jacque Netzer, Communications Director 

Staff Present:  Eric Hagenlock, IT Director 
Via Zoom Derek Pohle, PE, Support, Training and Compliance Manager (7/28 only) 

Brian Bailey, Design Systems & UAS Program Manager (7/28 only) 
Cameron Cole, GIS Manager (7/28 only) 
Liana Roberson, GIS Specialist (7/28 only) 

Guests: David Smith – Mason County Engineering & Construction Mgr (7/27 only) 
Loretta Swanson – Mason County Public Works Director (7/27/ only) 
Randy Neatherlin – Mason County Commissioner (7/27 only) 
Monte Reinders, P.E. – Jefferson County Engineer (7/27 only) 
Eric Kuzma – Jefferson County Asst Public Works Director (7/27 only) 
Joe Rutan, P.E.– Kitsap County Engineer (7/27 only) 
Jay Drye – WSDOT – Local Programs Director (7/28 only) 
Axel Swanson, WSACE Managing Director (7/28 only)   
Forrest Jones – Skagit County Transportation Programs Mgr (7/27 only) 
Tom Weller, P.E. - Skagit County Asst County Engineer (7/27 only)
John Becker – Grays Harbor County – Interim County Engineer (7/28 only)

General Public: Rick Pfeifer – Lithfield Technologies (7/27 only) 

3



2 

 

Thursday, July 27, 2023 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Coffman called the meeting to order at 1:00 pm.  

Kitsap County Chair Commissioner Charlotte Garrido welcomed the CRABoard to Bremerton 
and provided some opening remarks and encouraged them to explore Kitsap County while 
they’re in town visiting. 

 

CHAIR’S REPORT 

Board Appointments 
Chair Coffman read a letter from WSAC stating CRABoard Appointments for Commissioner 
Pollock, Commissioner French, and Grant Morgan were all re-appointed to additional 3-year 
terms expiring in June 2026.  
 

Approve Agenda for July 27-28, 2023 Meeting 

Commissioner Swannack moved and Commissioner French seconded to approve the agenda 
as presented.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Approve Minutes of April 13-14, 2023 CRABoard Meeting 

Commissioner Swannack asked the Minutes be revised to remove mention of May 2023 
implementation date since there had been discussion at the prior board meeting to correct the 
language around how to request public records both verbally and in writing. This WAC change 
revision will be corrected and re-submitted to the Code Reviser’s Office after the board meeting, 
and this was also corrected in the April Board Minutes.   

Eric Pierson moved and 2nd Vice Chair Pollock seconded to approve the revised minutes of the 
April 13-14, 2023 CRABoard meeting.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Election of Chair, Vice-Chair and Second Vice-Chair
Chair Coffman opened the floor for nominations for Chair, Vice-Chair and Second Vice-Chair.

Commissioner French made a motion to renominate the current officers to retain their positions. 

Chair Coffman closed nominations. 

Commissioner French moved and Eric Pierson seconded to approve a slate of officers as 
Commissioner Coffman as Chair, Commissioner Pollock as Vice-Chair, and Grant Morgan as 
Second Vice-Chair. Motion passed unanimously.   
 

Public Comment Period 
Chair Coffman opened the floor for any public comment. Seeing that there was none, he closed 
discussion. 
 

4



3 

 

COUNTY OVERVIEW & PROJECT PRESENTATIONS 
Jefferson, Kitsap and Mason counties were each invited to present to the Board an overview of 
their CRAB funded projects, including any challenges perhaps they’re currently facing. 
Speakers included: Monte Reinders, P.E. (Jefferson County Engineer), Joe Rutan, P.E. (Kitsap 
County Engineer), and David Smith (Mason County Engineering & Construction Manager).  
 
Chair Coffman called for a 15-min recess @ 2:15pm, and meeting resumed @ 2:32pm.  

SPECIAL PRESENTATION –  
Mike Clark provided the Board with an in-depth overview of the Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax (MVFT). 
The PowerPoint presentation will be e-mailed out to the Board at their request. 
 
 
CERTIFICATIONS 
 
Resolution 2023-005 Certifying the 2022 Master County Road Log
Mike Clark presented Resolution 2023-005 - Certifying the 2022 Master County Road Log, to 
reflect the county road system as of January 1, 2023. He reported that all 39 counties are 
compliant with the requirements, and staff recommends approval of the road log. Mr. Clark 
noted that this certification is on an annual basis.  
 
Following discussion and questions, Commissioner French moved and Commissioner Pollock 
seconded to approve Resolution 2023-005 - Certifying the 2022 Master County Road Log.  
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Resolution 2023-006 Regarding Certifying MVFT Allocation Factors 
Mr. Clark presented Resolution 2023-006 - Regarding Roadway Categories and Unit Costs for 
the 2024 and 2025 County Fuel Tax Distribution, which certifies the factors used in the 
computation of the fuel tax allocation to the individual counties. Staff recommends approval of 
the resolution. He also presented two attachments which explained the calculations and 
mileages for each county relating to the resolution. 
 
Following discussion and questions, Commissioner French moved and Commissioner 
Swannack seconded to approve Resolution 2023-006 - Regarding Roadway Categories and 
Unit Costs for the 2024 and 2025 County Fuel Tax Distribution.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Resolution 2023-007 - Apportion RATA Funds to Regions 
Steve Johnson presented Resolution 2023-007 - Apportion RATA Funds to Regions, which 
authorizes the accrued amount of $3,794,117 deposited to the RATA for March, April, May and 
June 2023 be apportioned to the regions by the established 2021-23 biennium regional 
percentages after setting aside $206,016 for administration. 

 
Commissioner Swannack moved and Commissioner French seconded to approve Resolution 
2023-007- Apportion RATA Funds to Regions.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Resolution 2023-008 – Establish 2023-2025 Regional Apportionment Percentages 
Mr. Johnson presented Resolution 2023-008 - Establish 2023-2025 Regional Apportionment 
Percentages, which computes the apportionment percentages for each of the five regions as 
follows: 43.67% (Northeast); 10.92% (Northwest); 6.91% (Puget Sound); 23.62% (Southeast); 

5



4 

 

14.88% (Southwest); which totals to 100.00%. 
Commissioner French moved and Grant Morgan seconded to approve Resolution 2023-008 - 
Establish 2023-2025 Regional Apportionment Percentages. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PROJECT BOARD ACTIONS 

Mr. Johnson presented two RAP requests received from Skagit and Jefferson Counties that 
need CRABoard approval. Skagit County has requested to “borrow ahead” its remaining 
$354,479 in 2025-2027 RATA project funding to construct its Pioneer Highway (Project #2923-
01) in 2023. 

Commissioner French moved and Commissioner Swannack seconded to approve Skagit 
County’s request to borrow ahead needed remaining funds in 2025-2027 RATA funding. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

Jefferson County has requested to “borrow ahead” its remaining $223,300 in 2025-2027 RATA 
project funding in order to construct its Center Road Project (#1622-01) in 2023. 

Commissioner Swannack moved and Eric Pierson seconded to approve Jefferson County’s 
request to borrow ahead needed remaining funds in 2025-2027 RATA funding. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 

Chair Coffman adjourned meeting at 3:28pm. 

 

Friday, July 28, 2023 

Chair Coffman called the meeting to order @ 8:32am.  

 
WAC CHANGES 
 
Drew Woods and Steve Johnson presented proposed WAC changes to the Standards of Good 
Practice, County Ferry Capital Improvement Program, and the Rural Arterial Program (RAP) as 
follows:  
 
Standards of Good Practice 
WAC 136-14-060 – Priority Programming 

 Incorrect submittal date reference – Road Log 
 Change from May 1st to April 1st 
 Use CR-105 – Expediated Rule Making 
 Amend Chapter 136-14-060 

WAC 136-14-20 – Inspection of Bridges on County Roads 
 Changes adopted by FHWA May 6, 2022 
 Coordinate with Local Programs to ensure both agency’s needs are met 
 Changes for Board to review at the July meeting 
 Public hearing at October 26, 2023 Board meeting 
 Amend 136-20-020, 030, 040 

6



5 

 

County Ferry Capital Improvement Program 
WAC 136-400 – County Ferry Capital Improvement Program (CFCIP) 

 Change the name of the Public Works Board program 
 Amend Chapter 136-400-050, 060 

 
Rural Arterial Program (RAP) 
Goals of the review: 

 Improve project delivery by counties 
 Improve clarity of program requirements 
 Ways to reduce RATA balance 
 Either codify or eliminate the “unwritten” RAP rules 
 Implement changes in 2023 
 Next call for projects begins January 1, 2024 
 Several items overlap with Grant Program Effectiveness Study for 23-25 biennium 

 
Specific project items: 

 Previous “unwritten” rule – If urban in nature, not allowable 
 Prohibited items like ADA, sidewalk, illumination, etc. 
 Change – If county feels item meets warrant, need, requirement then allow. 
 No WAC changes required.  Only elimination of unwritten rule. 

 
Require regions to allow all project types: 

 Northwest & Southwest Region – No bridges 
 Reduces the pool of available projects 
 Prohibits CRAB from assisting counties with emergent needs 
 Amend Chapter 136-130-020 

 
Standardize project estimate for final prospectus 

 Current system does not require counties to account for inflation. 
 Have counties submit estimate using today’s prices 
 CRAB will automatically apply a standardized inflation factor 
 Working with the State Economic and Revenue Forecast Council 
 Duration of factor dependent on project type.   

o For example: 2R – 2 years  3R – 4 years  Bridges – 6 years 
 Automatically calculate funding for preliminary engineering, construction engineering, 

and contingencies. 
 Amend Chapter 136-161-050 

 
Eliminate project type funding sublimits 

 Forces county to wait for funding over multiple bienniums 
 Change will result in fewer projects, but faster funding of approved projects 
 Amend Chapter 136-161-080 

 
Allow counties to request advanced funding for projects. 

 Must be a Board approved project ready for construction before the final RATA 
allocation has been made 

 Fiscally constrained – Only approved if RATA balance sufficient 
 Request after county certifies 90% design 
 Approval at Executive Director level 

7



6 

 

 Create Chapter 136-161-120 
 
Allow request for additional funds after bid opening 

 Use current framework of WAC 136-165 
o Maximum 25% increase 
o Project within original scope with justifiable changes 
o Funds available within existing RATA balance 

 Request between bid opening and contract award 
 County receives additional funding but decrease future available funding 
 Approval at Executive Director level due to time constraints between bid opening and bid 

award 
 Amend Chapter 136-165-010, 020, 030 

 
Indirect costs 

 Salaries and benefits okay 
 Applying a fixed percentage to all expenses per an indirect cost plan is not okay 
 Clarifies an “unwritten” rule 
 Amend Chapter 136-180-030 

 
 
Proposed WAC Changes – 

Mr. Woods requested the Board set a public hearing at the next board meeting on Thursday, 
October 26, 2023 (time TBD). CRAB staff will do an additional round of outreach to the counties. 
Comments and any recommended changes will be presented at the October 26, 2023 meeting. 

Eric Pierson moved and Commissioner Swannack seconded to approve setting a public hearing 
for public comments and adoption at the Board Meeting on October 26, 2023 (time TBD). 
Motion passed unanimously.   

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Jane Wall reviewed the current Strategic Planning Update with the CRABoard and provided 
some commentary on where things are progressing.  

Ms. Wall shared the new CRAB logo and its rollout in the weeks ahead. She spoke about the 
new cadence of the monthly communications newsletter which replaced the quarterly board 
reports.  

CRAB Staff have been on the road visiting many counties across the state, holding meetings 
and trainings, staff have also been attending conferences (Esri/GIS-Mo – Cameron & Liana), 
CRAB will also have a greater presence at the County Leaders Conference this Fall (Spokane). 
Ms. Wall and a few CRABoard members recently attended the National Association of County 
Officials (NACo) Conference in July 2023 down in Austin, TX.   

CRAB (Jane & Drew) continue to provide support to FMSIB while they’re working on recruitment 
for a new Executive Director, our current contract has been extended through August 2023. Jay 
Drye (WSDOT – Local Programs) thanked Jane & Drew for their support in helping FMSIB. 

 

8



7 

 

Legislative Priorities – Next Steps 

 Ms. Wall shared that while CRAB received funding for our grant programs, our requests 
for additional money to support activities we provide related to compliance and the needs of the 
counties were denied. We’ve asked for $250K – new study money – to look at fully funding 
programs, 1-2 FTE’s (Federal Fund Facilitators) to help secure federal fund dollars, and $480K 
for ongoing software licensing needs. Unfortunately, the Legislature chose to fund all of those 
asks through existing Rural Arteral Program (RAP) revenues instead of new appropriations.  

While not only being disappointed with these decisions, we are concerned using the Rural 
Arteral Program to fund some of the activities, namely the Federal Fund Facilitators, is an 
inappropriate use of those dollars. As a result, we solicited an A.G. opinion on the matter. The 
AG’s office agreed, andas such, we’ll be asking for reconsideration of this new money in the 
supplemental 2023-2025 budget. 

 

Deputy Director Report 

Drew Woods thanked Derek Pohle and Steve Johnson for their hard work with the CRAB IT 
Team to get the SmartSimple implementation close to the finish line. There is still some work to 
do, but we are on track to implement SmartSimple to replace CARS for the December reporting 
and to replace RAP online this fall before the start of the next call for projects. 
 
Speaking of RAP, the revenue outlook for RAP continues to look more positive. Not because 
motor vehicle fuel tax revenues are forecast to increase (they aren’t), but because the forecast 
revenue from the electric vehicle registration renewal fee continue to rise. While CRAB and the 
county’s MVFT funded programs continue to forecast to be stagnant over time, the EV fee is 
one that continues to increase with each transportation revenue forecast. 
 
County Engineer Appointments 
Mr. Woods shared the appointment of James Wege, P.E. as County Engineer for Garfield 
County which took effect on April 17, 2023. Doug Ranney, P.E. began as Whatcom County 
Engineer on July 1, 2023 following the retirement of Jim Karcher. On July 5, 2023, Seth Scarola 
was appointed as Klickitat County Engineer, a role in which he had been serving as interim 
County Engineer since the departure of Gordon Kelsey in December 2022. 
 
County Engineer Vacancies 
There are 3 active county engineer vacancies in Asotin, Grays Harbor, and Pend Oreille 
counties. John Becker, PE is serving as interim County Engineer for Grays Harbor County. Don 
Ramsey, PE is serving as interim County Engineer for Pend Oreille County while they’re actively 
recruiting to fill the position.  

County Audit Reviews 

According to the State Auditor’s Office (SAO), there were 18 county audits – 9 Financial and 9 
Accountability – with a total of 7 findings and 2 management letters sent out. Adams County 
received a letter regarding updating their indirect cost allocation plan. Benton County received a 
finding for their incorrect accounting of Covid relief money, GASB 34 infrastructure 
capitalization. Pend Oreille County also had a finding for incorrect use of Covid relief money to 
pay back ER&R for replacement rate holiday in 2021.  

9



8 

 

RAP Program Status 

The RAP Program Status summary sheet presents an at-a-glance summary of the number of 
active RAP projects, project status, account total historic revenue and usage (which includes 
$182.6M Total RATA obligated to currently active projects), and summarizes the most recent 
quarterly revenues and expenses. 

Completed Road Projects 

Mr. Woods shared some before & after photos and project highlights for a few completed road 
projects, including Cunningham Road – 2R-0117-02 (Adams County); Mill Creek Road – RC-
3616-01 (Walla Walla County); and Klondike Road – 2R-1019-01 (Ferry County).  

Regional RAP Meetings 

Regional meetings were held on the road across the state in June 2023. Topics covered:
 Funding and project status for the RAP program, as summarized on the RAP Program 

Status Report. 
 Legislative budget and impact – reduced MVA transfer, but is not expected to impact 

currently active projects. 
 Reviewed all active RAP projects with a high-level (construction-centric) project status 

overview. 
 RAP Online is being replaced using a SmartSimple application. There are obvious 

differences in visuals and navigation through the site, but the process is designed to 
remain similar to current practice. 

 Several proposed WAC changes were presented with opportunity for discussion. Most 
proposed changes had little to no comment, with a couple proposals resulting in mild 
analysis. 
 

Current & Previous Board Actions 

Project Actions taken by CRAB staff were then briefly shared on screen, followed by an update 
on Previous Board Actions taken. Mr. Woods called out Grays Harbor County’s Garrard Creek 
Road extension which the Board had previously granted a 1-year extension to reach 
construction. This project has now been advertised for construction (as of June 2023), which 
meets the construction lapse requirement. The others county projects listed are still in process, 
and Steve Johnson noted that 2 more county projects will now be added to the list. Columbia 
County’s loan through the Emergency Loan Projects (ELP) for Road, Bridge, and Streambank 
Repairs damaged in Flooding Event (Original Loan: $500K) is due April 2024 per amended 
contract term. Including simple interest, the single loan amount still due is now $515,158.33. Mr. 
Woods also mentioned that 8 counties had taken advantage of Resolution 2022-010 which 
allowed RATA funding for projects reaching construction in 2023/24, so those counties were 
granted contract amendments for reaching construction in 2023 (total to date $1,595,000), 
which will help bring the balance down as we get that money out to construction. 

Budget Update 

2021-2023 Biennium Closeout 

 Closeout not complete due to last minute expenditures, grant reimbursements, and 
FMSIB reimbursement 

 Came in under budget for operating and grant programs: 

10



9 

 

o Approximate $450,000 underspend in Operating 
o $250,000 in MVA operating.  This underspend will go out to counties through 

CAPP. 
 

2023-2025 Supplemental Budget Request 

 23-25 Budget appropriated $422,000 in RATA funding for federal funds facilitator 
positions at CRAB. 

 Received informal opinion from the State AG’s Office that not an appropriate use of 
RATA funds. 

 Will be requesting Legislature fund program from MVA so it can be implemented as 
proposed. 

 23-25 Budget appropriated $482,000 in RATA funding for increased software license 
fees. 

 Most of the software is not used by RATA.  Software is to complete statutory duties of 
CRAB. 

 Will be requesting Legislature fund the increased software costs at an appropriate split 
between MVA, CAPA, and RATA. 

 21-23 Supplemental Budget decreased the transfer from the MVA to RATA by 
$4,487,000. 

 The previous transfer amount had been used to determine program funding and has 
been allocated to projects. 

 Will be meeting with OFM staff to determine if it is feasible to request the funding be 
restored through the 23-25 supplemental budget. 

 

IT Division Report 

Eric Hagenlock shared the 2023 IT Strategic Plan Update noting that OCIO Policy 112 
(Technology Portfolio Foundation) requires each agency to establish an IT strategic plan in 
support of the agency business strategic plan.  This policy also requires the IT strategic plan be 
accessible on our public facing website: https://www.crab.wa.gov/services/crab-information-
services/2023-information-services-strategic-plan 

Agency Strategic Goals: 
Provide Innovative Solutions (Innovate), Optimize Resources for County Transportation 
Needs (Optimize), and Magnify CRAB Presence and Credibility (Magnify). 

IT Strategic Goals:
In support of these, IT strategic goals are Data Integration (innovate, optimize, and magnify), 
Organization Project Management (optimize), Legacy System Modernization (innovate, 
optimize), and Customer-first Experience (optimize, magnify). 

Mr. Hagenlock mentioned that the single words in parenthesis next to each IT strategy indicate 
which business strategy this is in response to. 
 
Organizational project management (OPM) is one of the IT strategies identified and looks at 
how all projects are managed from a higher level. It connects all projects across departments 
with your broader business goals. OPM consists of three major components: Project 

11



10 

 

Management (individual level), Program Management (goal level), and Portfolio Management 
(executive level). 

Benefits:
Through better defined project management practices and objective data for decision making, 
OPM has been proven successful in improving predicable outcomes on future projects, leads to 
higher customer satisfaction, and overall higher productivity. 

The current IT portfolio includes seventeen projects in-progress, with another four approved and 
upcoming, and eight requests awaiting consideration. Below are a quick summary of how these 
projects align with CRAB Agency/IT strategic goals. 

Mobility© Decommissioning 

Mobility© is our outgoing road log inventory system of more than two decades.  GIS-Mo 
replaced Mobility© in 2021 after four years in implementation.  Mike Clark, CRAB Road System 
Inventory Manager, is developing the MVFT distribution factors presented at the July 2023 
Board Meeting for the first time using the new GIS-Mo system. 

CRAB had extended our support of Mobility© to 2024 as we encountered some unanticipated 
challenges during GIS-Mo go-live.  However, Scott Campbell, CRAB IT Systems Security 
Engineer, received notice the server resource hosting Mobility© for 36 of 39 counties would no 
longer receive any security updates starting October 1st, 2023!  The risk is too great for CRAB to 
continue using this resource even one day into no security updates as it is well-known how 
vulnerable this resource is to ransomware and other compromising cybersecurity threats.  

After extension outreach and engage through surveys, the monthly GIS-Mo Forum, and one-on-
one county interactions, CRAB has developed initiatives to meet county business needs and 
allow us to decommission Mobility© in September 2023, ahead of the October 1st deadline. 

ESRI User Conference 2023 

In support of CRAB strategy of Magnify CRAB Presence and Credibility, Cameron Cole, GIS 
Manager and Liana Roberson, GIS Specialist presented on GIS-Mo at the 2023 ESRI User 
Conference in San Diego, CA.  They received great engagement from attendees, accolades 
from their peers afterwards, and even bumped into a few county road staff in sunny California! 
In addition to exposing GIS-Mo and the great work done by Washington Counties and CRAB, 
several innovative solutions were discussed to improve GIS-Mo overall for years to come. 

CARS/RAP SMARTSIMPLE SaaS IMPLEMENTATION 

CRAB Staff consisting of Donna Quach (Software Engineer), James Rea (Software Engineer), 
Derek Pohle, PE (Support, Training, and Compliance Manager), Steve Johnson, PE (Grants 
Program Manager), Scott Campbell (IT System Security Engineer), and Angela Rice (IT 
Systems Administrator) completed a yearlong implementation of SmartSimple in conjunction 
with vendor implementation team.   

Mr. Hagenlock mentioned this project replaces the in-house developed CARS and RAP Online 
web applications with a Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) solution.  This will allow CRAB to adapt 
to changes in programs, statutes, and technology more rapidly with fewer labor resources spent 
on custom development and testing. 

12



11 

 

This project was completed with a grant of $300,000 in study funds from the Washington State 
Association of Counties (WSAC) and came in on-time and under budget. 

Mr. Hagenlock ended with sharing on-screen a graphic illustrating Fiscal Year 2023 IT Metrics. 
 

WSACE Managing Director – Axel Swanson 

Mr. Swanson reported on the activities of the Washington State Association of County 
Engineers (WSACE) and its very busy legislative session. He covered most of that during the 
April CRAB Board meeting, so he focused on interim activities since then.  

WSACE hosted both Eastside and Westside membership meetings and worked through its 
elections process for the Board of Directors ahead of the Annual Conference in June.  
 
The WSACE Annual Conference took place June 26-29th at the Hotel Murano in Pierce County. 
They worked hard with the WSAC Communications & Member Services staff to deliver a great 
agenda packed with educational content and enjoyable opportunities for members to network 
with colleagues from around the state.  
 
The Board and Managing Director are now focusing on pulling together subcommittees to 
update both its strategic plan and legislative priorities documents prior to the November 2023 
County Leaders Conference.  
 
Mr. Swanson continues to participate in legislative workgroups, meet with agencies regarding 
regulatory challenges and rulemaking, and draft documents related to WSACE studies and 
projects.  
 
WSACE members continue to participate on many boards, committees, and work groups 
related to county transportation and infrastructure during the interim. Examples include: WDFW 
Statewide Salmon Strategy Assessment, WDFW Fish Passage Rule Making, Fish Barrier 
Removal Board, Pedestrian and Bicycle Program (PBP) and Safe Routes to School Program 
(SRTS), the State Transportation Innovation Council (STIC), MRSC workgroup to determine the 
ability of local jurisdictions to deliver state projects, a review of CRAB’s grant programs, and 
strategic planning for statewide truck parking solutions. WSACE is also working with WSDOT 
Local Programs to develop a new Federal Fund Exchange Pilot Program.   
 
Finally, requests for presentations have increased considerably, starting with the Washington 
State Good Roads Association in August, and APWA and IACC in October.  

Chair Coffman noted that there was no need for an Executive Session. 

Chair Coffman adjourned the meeting at 11:32 am.  

 

________________________________ 

Chair 

________________________________ 

Attest 

13



            

2024 CRABoard Meeting 
Schedule (proposed) 

January 18-19, 2024          CRAB Office, Olympia 
*Start @1:30pm instead of 1pm (due to LSC) 

April 25-26, 2024    CRAB Office, Olympia 

July 25-26, 2024     
                  Thurs, July 25

Friday, July 26

Proposed: Port Angeles
Board Meeting (all-day)
County Projects Tour

October 24 - 25, 2024    Proposed: Walla Walla 

January 18– WSAC LSC Zoom Meeting (8am – 1pm) 
January 19 – FMSIB (Olympia) 
**January 17-18 – Transportation Commission (WSTC) 
January 25-26 – TIB Mtg (Olympia) 
January 26 – WSAC LSC Legislative Update (12 – 1pm) 
February 1– WSAC LSC Zoom Meeting (8am – 1pm) 
April 15-19 – NACE Annual Conference (Palm Springs, California) 
**April 17-18 – Transportation Commission (WSTC) April 
10-11 – APWA Spring Meeting (Vancouver) 
**July 10-14 or July 17-21 – LakeFair (Olympia) 
**July 17-18 – Transportation Commission (WSTC) 
July 12-15 – NACo Annual Conference, Tampa, Florida 
October 9-10 – APWA Fall Meeting (Kennewick) 
**October 16-17 – Transportation Commission (WSTC) 

  
  **Best guess based on prior years’ scheduling

All meetings are scheduled to begin at 1:00 pm the first day  and 
to reconvene at 8:30 am the second day  

14



Page 1 of 3

PROPOSED RULE MAKING

CODE REVISER USE ONLY

CR-102 (July 2022)
(Implements RCW 34.05.320)

Do NOT use for expedited rule making

Agency: County Road Administration Board

Original Notice

Supplemental Notice to WSR

Continuance of WSR

Preproposal Statement of Inquiry was filed as WSR ; or

Expedited Rule Making--Proposed notice was filed as WSR ; or

Proposal is exempt under RCW 34.05.310(4) or 34.05.330(1); or

Proposal is exempt under RCW .
Title of rule and other identifying information: (describe subject) Amending WAC 136-12, 136-14, and 136-20 to make 
changes to the standards of good practice.  Amending WAC 136-130, 136-161, 136-165, and 136-180 to make changes to 
the rural arterial program.  Amending WAC 136-400 to change outdated program titles.
Hearing location(s):

Date: Time: Location: (be specific) Comment:

October 26, 2023 8:45am 1116 West Broadway Ave
Spokane, WA 99260

CRABoard meeting will be held in the Spokane County 
Commissioners hearing room #100. Zoom attendance 
is available.

Date of intended adoption: October 26, 2023 (Note:  This is NOT the effective date)

Submit written comments to: Assistance for persons with disabilities:

Name: Drew Woods Contact Drew Woods

Address: 2404 Chandler Ct SW, Suite 240; Olympia, WA 
98504

Phone: 360.753.5989

Email: Drew.Woods@CRAB.Wa.Gov Fax: N/A

Fax: N/A TTY: 800.883.6384

Other: Email: Drew.Woods@CRAB.Wa.Gov

By (date) October 20, 2023 Other: 

By (date) October 20, 2023

Purpose of the proposal and its anticipated effects, including any changes in existing rules: 

Reasons supporting proposal: WAC 136-12 and 136-14 are being updated to correct reference to other chapters of WAC 
that have been updated previously.  WAC 136-20 is to update the standard of good practice for bridge inspection to current
federal standards.  WAC 136-130, -161, -165, and -180 are being amended to streamline the rural arterial program to 
facilitate faster project delivery and add ability to fund project increases.  WAC 136-400 is being amended to bring outside 
grant program titles to current titles.
Statutory authority for adoption: Chapter 36.78.070 RCW

Statute being implemented: Chapter 36.78.070(1), 36.78.070(6), and 36.79.060(1) RCW

Is rule necessary because of a:

Federal Law? Yes No

Federal Court Decision? Yes No

State Court Decision? Yes No
If yes, CITATION: 

Agency comments or recommendations, if any, as to statutory language, implementation, enforcement, and fiscal 
matters: N/A

Type of proponent: Private Public Governmental
Name of proponent: (person or organization) County Road Administration Board

15



Page 2 of 3

Name of agency personnel responsible for:

Name Office Location Phone

Drafting: Drew Woods, Steve Johnson, 
Derek Pohle

2402 Chandler Ct SW, Suite 240; Olympia, WA 
98504

360.753.5989

Implementation: Steve Johnson, Derek Pohle
2402 Chandler Ct SW, Suite 240; Olympia, WA 
98504

360.753.5989

Enforcement: Drew Woods
2402 Chandler Ct SW, Suite 240; Olympia, WA 
98504

360.753.5989

Is a school district fiscal impact statement required under RCW 28A.305.135? Yes No
If yes, insert statement here:

The public may obtain a copy of the school district fiscal impact statement by contacting:
Name: 
Address:
Phone:
Fax:
TTY:
Email: 
Other:

Is a cost-benefit analysis required under RCW 34.05.328?

Yes: A preliminary cost-benefit analysis may be obtained by contacting:
Name: 
Address:
Phone:
Fax:
TTY:
Email: 
Other:

No: Please explain: Proposed rule relates only to internal governmental operations that are not subject to violation by 
a nongovernment party

Regulatory Fairness Act and Small Business Economic Impact Statement
Note: The Governor's Office for Regulatory Innovation and Assistance (ORIA) provides support in completing this part.

(1) Identification of exemptions:
This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, may be exempt from requirements of the Regulatory Fairness Act (see 
chapter 19.85 RCW). For additional information on exemptions, consult the exemption guide published by ORIA. Please 
check the box for any applicable exemption(s):

This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under RCW 19.85.061 because this rule making is being 
adopted solely to conform and/or comply with federal statute or regulations. Please cite the specific federal statute or 
regulation this rule is being adopted to conform or comply with, and describe the consequences to the state if the rule is not
adopted.
Citation and description: 

This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt because the agency has completed the pilot rule process 
defined by RCW 34.05.313 before filing the notice of this proposed rule.

This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under the provisions of RCW 15.65.570(2) because it was 
adopted by a referendum.

This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under RCW 19.85.025(3). Check all that apply:

RCW 34.05.310 (4)(b) RCW 34.05.310 (4)(e)

(Internal government operations) (Dictated by statute)

RCW 34.05.310 (4)(c) RCW 34.05.310 (4)(f)

(Incorporation by reference) (Set or adjust fees)

RCW 34.05.310 (4)(d) RCW 34.05.310 (4)(g)

(Correct or clarify language) ((i) Relating to agency hearings; or (ii) process

requirements for applying to an agency for a license
or permit)

This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under RCW 19.85.025(4) (does not affect small businesses).

16



Page 3 of 3

This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under RCW 36.78.
Explanation of how the above exemption(s) applies to the proposed rule:

(2) Scope of exemptions: Check one.
The rule proposal is fully exempt (skip section 3). Exemptions identified above apply to all portions of the rule proposal.
The rule proposal is partially exempt (complete section 3). The exemptions identified above apply to portions of the rule 

proposal, but less than the entire rule proposal. Provide details here (consider using this template from ORIA):  
The rule proposal is not exempt (complete section 3). No exemptions were identified above.

(3) Small business economic impact statement: Complete this section if any portion is not exempt.

If any portion of the proposed rule is not exempt, does it impose more-than-minor costs (as defined by RCW 19.85.020(2)) 
on businesses?

No Briefly summarize the minor cost analysis and how the agency determined the proposed rule did not 
impose more-than-minor costs.

Yes Calculations show the rule proposal likely imposes more-than-minor cost to businesses and a small business 
economic impact statement is required. Insert the required small business economic impact statement here:

The public may obtain a copy of the small business economic impact statement or the detailed cost calculations by 
contacting:

Name: 
Address:
Phone:
Fax:
TTY:
Email: 
Other:

Date: September 18, 2023

Name: Jane Wall

Title: Executive Director

Signature:

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



WHEREAS

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the accrued amount of $6,959,010 made available in the
RATA in July, August, and September 2023 be apportioned to the regions by
their 2023-2025 biennium percentages after setting aside $180,836 for administration.

REGION PERCENT

ADMIN.

NORTHEAST

NORTHWEST

PUGET SOUND

SOUTHEAST

SOUTHWEST

TOTAL

Adopted by the CRABoard on October 26, 2023

1,601,005 159,538,758

100.00%

1,008,592

6,959,010

23.62%

14.88%

1,601,005

Chair's Signature

APPORTION  RATA  FUNDS  TO  REGIONS 
RESOLUTION 2023-009

740,177 740,177

15,495,109

293,557,331

180,836

43.67%

180,836

10.92%

PRIOR
PROGRAM

290,597,303

1,008,592

6.91%

2,960,029

468,372 468,372

ATTEST

161,139,763

77,252,030

48,794,17948,325,807

76,511,853

2,960,029

6,959,010 698,368,606

101,121,602

691,409,596

102,130,194

RCW 36.79.030 establishes the Northeast, Northwest, Puget Sound, Southeast and 
Southwest Regions in Washington State for the purpose of apportioning Rural Arterial 
Trust Account (RATA) funds; and

RCW 36.79.040 specifies the manner in which RATA funds are to be apportioned to the 
five regions; and

the CRABoard established regional apportionment percentages for the 2023 - 2025 
biennium at its meeting of July 27, 2023; and

RCW 36.79.020 authorizes expenditure of RATA funds for costs associated with program 
administration;

15,314,272

CURRENT
APPORTION

RCW 36.79.050 states that the apportionment percentages shall be used once each calendar 
quarter by the board to apportion funds credited to the rural arterial trust account; and

TO DATEAPPORTION
(1983 - 2023)(2023 - 2025)

BIENNIAL PROGRAM
APPORTION-

MENT

31



32



33



34



County Road Administration Board – October 26, 2023 

REQUEST ADVANCE CONSTRUCTION FUNDS – RAP PROGRAM

Wenatchee Heights Road – 2R 
 CHELAN COUNTY

Nature of Request: 

Chelan County is requesting a contract amendment to authorize the remaining RATA funds for the active 
project 0423-01 – Wenatchee Heights Road 2R project.  The requested RATA funding for this project 
totals $1,236,600.  RATA authorized to date is $577,000.  The remaining $659,600 of RATA funding is 
expected to be authorized as part of the 2025-2027 biennium RAP cycle.  Chelan County intends to 
construct the project in 2024 instead of waiting until 2025 for full RATA accrual on the standard 
schedule.  By advancing the project to 2024, the County will be eligible for an additional $137,400 in 
match adjustment RATA funds. 
 
Background:  

The Wenatchee Heights Road project was originally awarded RATA funding in the 2023-2025 RAP 
cycle, authorizing $577,000.   
The remaining $659,600 is expected to be authorized as part of the 2025-2027 RAP cycle. 
If this funding is authorized early, the funds would be deducted from the Chelan County funding limit on 
the array of proposed 2025-2027 projects. 
 
Staff Analysis: 

 The RATA balance remains high 
 The RATA revenue forecast remains stable, and has capacity for advancing some of the existing 

obligation for projects 
 The NE Region currently limits 2R funding to a maximum of $750,000 per county per biennium.  

The requested $659,600 remains within that limit for the 2025-2027 biennium funding cycle. 
 
Staff findings: 

Staff has reviewed the project request and finds: 
 Chelan County has the capacity to complete the project in 2024.  
 The RATA account has the capacity to reimburse the project costs ahead of the current 2025 

reimbursement schedule, including the potential additional match adjustment RATA funds. 
 Chelan County has agreed to the reduced funding limit for the 2025-2027 RAP cycle, if the 

request is approved.   
 
Recommendation:   

Staff recommends authorizing $659,600 in advanced RATA funding for the Wenatchee Heights Road 2R 
project, MP 1.32 to 2.10.  This funding, if approved by the CRABoard, will be deducted from the Chelan 
County funding limit on the 2025-2027 array of RAP proposed projects. 

 
 

35



36



37



County Road Administration Board – October 26, 2023 

REQUEST ADVANCE CONSTRUCTION FUNDS – RAP PROGRAM

Sand Road – 2R 
WHITMAN COUNTY

Nature of Request: 

Whitman County is requesting a contract amendment to authorize the remaining RATA funds for the 
active project 3823-01 – Sand Road 2R project.  The requested RATA funding for this project totals 
$1,198,800.  RATA authorized to date is $750,000,000.  The remaining $448,800 of RATA funding is 
expected to be authorized as part of the 2025-2027 biennium RAP cycle.  Whitman County intends to 
construct the project in 2024 instead of waiting until 2025 for full RATA accrual on the standard 
schedule.  By advancing the project to 2024, the County will be eligible for an additional $133,200 in 
match adjustment RATA funds. 
 
Background:  

The Sand Road project was originally awarded RATA funding in the 2023-2025 RAP cycle, authorizing 
$750,000.   
The remaining $448,800 is expected to be authorized as part of the 2025-2027 RAP cycle. 
If this funding is authorized early, the funds would be deducted from the Whitman County funding limit 
on the array of proposed 2025-2027 projects. 
 
Staff Analysis: 

 The RATA balance remains high 
 The RATA revenue forecast remains stable, and has capacity for advancing some of the existing 

obligation for projects 
 The NE Region currently limits 2R funding to a maximum of $750,000 per county per biennium.  

The requested $448,800 remains within that limit for the 2025-2027 biennium funding cycle. 
 
Staff findings: 

Staff has reviewed the project request and finds: 
 Whitman County has the capacity to complete the project in 2024.  
 The RATA account has the capacity to reimburse the project costs ahead of the current 2025 

reimbursement schedule, including the potential additional match adjustment RATA funds. 
 Whitman County has agreed to the reduced funding limit for the 2025-2027 RAP cycle, if the 

request is approved.   
 
Recommendation:   

Staff recommends authorizing $448,800 in advanced RATA funding for the Sand Road 2R project, MP 
0.00 to 6.56.  This funding, if approved by the CRABoard, will be deducted from the Whitman County 
funding limit on the 2025-2027 array of RAP proposed projects. 

 
 

38



39



SPECIAL PRESENTATION - 

RURAL ARTERIAL PROGRAM 
(RAP)

PRESENTED BY:
Steve Johnson, PE (Grants Program Manager)

40



 
 
 

County Road Administration Board – October 26, 2023 
Consider a Call for Projects  

and establish a funding period in 2025 - 2027 
WAC 136-161-020 

Introduction: 
 
Per WAC 136-161-020, the Rural Arterial Program project funding cycle begins at the fall odd-year 
CRABoard meeting, when the board considers the Rural Arterial Trust Account (RATA) balance and 
future revenue to determine if enough funds will be available to provide for an additional array of 
projects for the ensuing biennium (2025– 2027).
 

“(1) The CRABoard establishes a funding period if it determines that sufficient future RATA funds are 
available to provide for new RAP projects. This determination takes place during the CRABoard's 
regularly scheduled fall meeting in odd-numbered years.” 

 
Things to Consider:
 

1. Revenue estimate
 
RATA fund revenue has experienced several years of uncertainty, considering the pandemic and 
related responses and effects.  This includes a temporary but significant reduction in MVFT, 
increasing electric vehicle fees, continuing legislative MVA transfers, as well as some federal 
recovery funding. The most recent forecast shows that the revenue is expected to increase 
significantly over the next ten years.  The current ’23-’25 budget includes RATA revenue of 
$45,093,400.  Estimated ’25– ’27 RATA revenue as of September 2023 is $48,747,700 including the 
MVFT, electric vehicle licensing fee overages, and returns to the $4,844,000 legislative transfer from 
the MVA into the RATA account. 
The revenue graph below also includes the forecast for the ’31-’33 biennium, which is the likely 
construction timeframe for many of the projects that will be funded by the period under 
consideration.  This graph demonstrates that the RATA revenue at that time is expected to be more 
than $18 million higher than the ’25-’27 revenue – almost entirely consisting of the increased electric 
vehicle licensing overage fees. 
 

 

41



 
2. RATA Spending History and Balance

Actual 
Biennium Planned Spending  Spending  Revenue  Ending Balance 
’17 – ’19 $71,600,000 $46,100,000  $45,000,000  $19,500,000  
’19 – ’21 $72,500,000  $44,500,000  $39,000,000  $15,800,000  
’21 – ’23 $62,700,000  $36,500,000 (58%) $46,500,000  $25,800,000  
’23 – ’25 $81,800,000  $47,400,000  $45,100,000  $23,500,000 est 
’25 – ’27 $50,000,000*  $48,000,000  $48,800,000  $24,300,000 est 
’27 – ’29 $50,000,000*  $50,000,000  $54,000,000  $28,300,000 est 

*adds new funding to current partially funded projects 
 
In the ’21-’23 biennium RATA spending was 58% of that planned.  The RAP Online Reimbursement 
Schedule remains our best estimate for cash flow, however we are still seeing that counties are not 
actually spending the full amounts as planned.  Staff anticipates the end of 2023 – 2025 RATA 
balance at $23,500,000.  The balance during the ’25 – ’27 biennium will likely remain steady as there 
are more projects programmed for construction during that time, but the likely spending nearly 
matches the revenue forecast.  The resulting balance at the end of the 2025 - 2027 biennium is 
anticipated to be about $24,300,000.  The account balance is expected to remain high until counties 
successfully bring these projects to construction.  However, with the increasing revenue estimates 
combined with the time necessary to bring projects to construction, lowering the RATA balance 
remains difficult.   

 

3. Effect of Over-obligation 

Though new projects aren’t generally programmed for immediate construction reimbursement, 
adding new projects for reimbursement in later years has typically helped pressure older projects to 
get built. The over obligation of RATA funds (currently around $176,000,000) with new projects will 
have the effect of pushing the estimated $28,300,000 balance at the end of the ’27-’29 biennium 
lower. 

42



 

4. Funding new projects 

After funding partially funded projects (currently short by $28,774,727 - see attached), the remaining 
funds would support new projects. CRABstaff would schedule construction reimbursements for new 
projects in the 2029 -2031 biennium, approximately 5 years after approval.    Projects can advance to
an earlier reimbursement based on progress certified in RAP Online by the county engineer. 
 

Project progress milestones certified by county engineer: 
 

 50% Design 
 90% Design 
 Permits 
 PS&E 

Right of Way 
Advertisement for Construction 

 
5. Summary 

The RATA balance has remained steady over the past ten years, with an obvious dip caused by 
pandemic impacts.  The balance has since been slowly climbing. The revenue forecast shows a 
stable MVFT, with additional CW funds, expected to continue.  The expected electric vehicle 
license fees are shown to be increasing significantly over time, with the expected revenue for the 
’31-’33 biennium more than doubling since the September 2022 forecast. 
 

 
 
In the next years, reimbursements are expected to nearly match the revenue, and potentially 
exceed revenue as a large number of projects reach construction.  However, with the RATA 
balance still projected to remain high over the next several years, CRAB staff continues to 
encourage some projects (such as 2R projects) to advance into construction earlier than 
scheduled.   
 
 

43



6. Findings
 

 The fuel tax revenue estimate has been steadily increasing over the last several biennia, with 
the exception of the pandemic reduction in 2020.  Motor Vehicle Account transfer funds have 
also boosted the total revenue and is expected to continue in future biennia. 

 Electric Vehicle License Fee revenue is expected to increase significantly in the next several 
biennia, resulting in increased total revenue.  

 Most projects take an average of five to six years to reach construction, therefore the expected 
construction payout for projects funded in 2025-2027 period will be initially scheduled for 
2030 

 Most of the current projects were funded at the ~$40M revenue level.  Due to the increasing 
revenue levels and the average time for projects to reach construction, the RATA balance 
continues to gradually increase.

 Over obligation encourages counties to move projects to construction, tending to keep
pressure on the RATA balance to remain low. 

 A minimum balance of $5M in the RATA is acceptable due to legislative approval of the 
Emergency Loan Program in April 2019.  This program addresses emergency funding needs 
which were previously funded by the RAP.   

 The RAP Online database, direct communication with the county engineers via regular RAP 
regional meetings, and tying reimbursement schedules closely to project progress allows staff 
to closely monitor project activity, account balance, and cash flow. 
 

7. Recommendation
 
Staff recommends a call for projects be issued by the CRABoard opening January, 2024 for projects 
to be funded with the 2025 – 2027 biennial budget, with the first allocation to occur in the 
CRABoards’ spring, 2025 meeting.  The call for projects will require preliminary proposals be 
submitted to CRAB by March 1, 2024.  Final proposals will be due by September 2024. 
 
The funding level recommended by staff is $70,000,000 based on projected RATA balance, forecast
revenues, and timing for construction reimbursements of projects to be funded.  The high funding 
level will help to ensure a large array of projects to consider for award in April 2025. 
 
In the event that revenue estimates are significantly reduced in the actual ’25-’27 budget, the 
CRABoard is able to adjust the award amount accordingly.   
 
Staff further recommends that in the event the RATA balance should drop to $5,000,000, projects be 
delayed based on progress as certified in RAP Online and discussions with the county engineers. 
 

44



45



RATA balance management history 
 

 1995 - RATA balance $41,000,000+:  
 

o CRABoard adopts dynamic project funding rules 
o Funds two biennia worth of projects and 2R/3R mini-program ($106 M obligated) 

 
 2000 -   RATA balance $15,000,000: 

 
o CRABoard places a moratorium on lapsing of county selected projects. 
o Retain withdrawn and under-run funds for use in future arrays 
o Maintain a minimum balance of $12,000,000 for emergencies 

 
 2007-   RATA balance $39,000,000: 

 
o Added $18,450,548 of withdrawn funds back into previous and new 2007-2009 array 
o Propose adding $8-$12 million of withdrawn funds back into 2009-2011 array 
o Direct staff to program project expenditures at ~3X the revenue rate or higher. 

 
 2009-   RATA balance $35,000,000 as of September 21: 

 
o Added $15,225,036 of withdrawn funds back into previous and new 2009-2011 array 
o Staff continues to allow counties to program project expenditures at about 2-1/2 X the 

revenue rate. 
o Current obligation to active projects: $144,047,691.  To full funding of 2010 and 2011 

partially funded projects: $172,278,649. 
 

 2011-  RATA Balance $22,000,000 as of September 26, 2011 
 

o Allocated $22,000,000 in new project funding via supplemental appropriation and 
$3,600,000 in turn-back funds in March 2010.  
Current obligation to active projects: $116,829,190.  To full funding of 2010 and 2011 
partially funded projects: $133,484,174. 
 

 2013-  RATA Balance at $18,000,000 as of September 1, 2013 
 

o Allocated $42,000,000 to partial and new projects.  Obligation to active projects at 
that time was $110,363,208. Full funding of all projects raised obligation to 
$129,900,000. 
 

 2015-  RATA Balance at $14,200,000 in January, $16,000,000 in August 
 

o Allocated $40,000,000 to partial and new projects in April.  Contracted obligation 
(Balance) to active projects was $114,700,000. Full funding of partially funded 
projects would increase the obligation to $133,000,000 

46



 
 2017-  RATA Balance at $15,500,000 as of March, 2017

o Since the balance had been steadily declining over the prior 8 years, the counties were 
restricted to submitting about half the usual request amount for the 2017 - 2019 array. 
(Example: NE region $5,000,000 historical submittal limit was restricted to 
$2,500,000). Staff anticipates the end of 2017 balance to be about 18,000,000. 
 

2019- RATA Balance at $19,500,000 as of September, 2019
 

o Current program level is at ~157,000,000 through 2026, the highest the RAP has 
experienced.  At its April 2019 meeting, the CRABoard programmed reimbursements 
for slow moving projects out 3 to 4 years for construction, and new projects to 
commence CN in 2024. The 2019 – 2021 biennium still faces a solid $72.5M payout 
which should continue to moderate the balance. 
 

 2021-  RATA Balance at $18,600,000 as of September 2021 
 

o Revenue was impacted by pandemic, but recovered.  Pandemic impacts and inflation 
continue to make project delivery difficult for most counties.  This project slowdown 
resulted in an increasing RATA balance by the end of the biennium. 

 
Potential for next biennium
 

 2023- Potential for additional allocation of $70,000,000 in 2025-2027 
 

o Currently active RAP projects are $28.8M short of full funding.  The remaining 
allocation ($41.2M) would fund new projects.  This large obligation to new projects 
will require close management of reimbursement schedules, as these projects develop, 
to maintain a RATA balance no lower than $5M.  Features have been added to RAP 
Online so that reimbursement schedules can advance only as counties 
demonstrate/certify project progress, and the Grant Program Manager approves. 

 
 
 

47



COUNTY PRESENTATIONS

Adams County 
Scott Yaeger (County Engineer) 
Todd O’Brien (Public Works Director) 

Lincoln County
Walt Olsen (interim County Engineer) 
David Orvis (Public Works Director) 

Whitman County
Dean Cornelison (County Engineer) 
Mark Storey (Public Works Director) 

48



49



50



A Ja
ne

B
C Ja
ne

B D
re
w

D
Ja
cq
ue

5
1



SENATE TRANSPORTATION 
COMMITTEE CHAIR

SENATOR MARKO LIIAS 

(Representing the 21st Legislative District –  
which includes neighborhoods in Edmonds, Everett, Lynnwood and Mukilteo) 

52



HOUSE TRANSPORTATION 
COMMITTEE CHAIR 

REPRESENTATIVE JAKE FEY 

(Representing the 27th Legislative District) 

52B



To: Jane Wall – Executive Director 
County Road Administration Board

From: Bret Skipworth, Senior Financial Consultant
Department of Enterprise Services

Date: October 17, 2023 

Subject:  September 2023 (FM03) Financial Status

The August financial reports show the agency has spent $22,299 more authority than planned 
to date in Fund 108, $38,781 less authority than planned to date in Fund 186, and $31,647 less
authority than planned to date in Fund 102. 

The following is a brief explanation on the variances between allotment assumptions and the 
actual expenditures/revenues: 

Salaries & Benefits (A&B)  
Positive BITD variance of $38,316 cumulative for all three funds. There is a current variance 
building due to the agency having one vacant position.

Professional Service Contracts (C)
Positive BITD variance of $31,248 cumulative for all three funds

So far, there have been no expenses towards Professional Service Contracts this year.

53



Goods & Services (E)
Negative BITD variance of $10,274 cumulative for all three funds.

EC – Utilities - $2,664 underspent – September contained payments to DM Ventures for 
the July utilities and to Lemay.
EG – Employee Professional Development & Training – $7,679 overspent – September 
had a larger expense total of $6,433 for conference registrations, UVA Coach 
Teachable.com, Cadapult Press, American National Standard, and a reimbursement for 
team building.
EH – Rental & Leases (Furniture & Equipment) - $1,367 overspent – July and September 
had two larger meeting space rental charges than anticipated at $655 in July and $894 in 
September.
EL – Data Processing Services - $4,855 underspent – The invoices for the CTS computer 
services has come in under what we projected for by $4,581 so far this year, 
contributing the most to the underspend.
EN – Personnel Services - $780 overspent – This overspend mostly comes from an 
expense of $767 for OFM Personnel Services that was not projected for.
EP – Insurance – Overspent $13,807 – This overspent amount is due to an accrual for 
the Commercial Cyber Liability Insurance Policy, Commercial Property APIP, and the out 
of state workers compensation policy.

54



Travel (G)
There is a negative BITD variance of $11,161. September had travel expenses totaling $4,087. 

Grants and Benefits (N) – Grants to Counties
The CAPA Fund 186 has a negative variance of $409,196, our RATA Fund 102 has a positive 
$3,021,925 variance. 

If you have any questions or need additional information, feel free to call me at (360) 890-6657
or e-mail me at bret.skipworth@des.wa.gov.

55



56



2023-25 BIENNIAL BUDGET DECISION PACKAGE

Agency: County Road Administration Board 4060 

DP code/title: Federal Fund Facilitator Program Funding Source Change 
 

Budget period: 2023 - 2025

Budget level: ML 

Agency RecSum text: Amend the funding source identified in the 23-25 transportation budget 
for the Federal Fund Facilitators Program created during the 2023 Legislative session.  The new 
program was funded entirely from Fund 102 – Rural Arterial Trust Account.  However, statutory 
restrictions on the use of Fund 102 prohibit the program from being implemented as proposed by 
the Agency.

Fiscal detail 

Operating Expenditures FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 

Fund 102-1 -$211,000 -$211,000 -$263,348 -$263,348

Fund 108  $151,392 $270,848 $263,348

    

Total Expenditures -$211,000 -$59,608 $7,500 $0

Biennial Totals -$270,608 $7,500 

Staffing FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 

FTEs 0 1 2 2

Average Annual 0.5 2 

Object of Expenditure FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 

Obj. A -$149,424 -$42,006 $0 $0

Obj. B -$46,576 -$12,602 $0 $0

Obj. G -$5,000 -$5,000 -$2,500 $0

Obj. J -$10,000 $0 $10,000 $0

Revenue FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 

Fund 108 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total Revenue   

Biennial Totals   

57



Package description 

At the request of Sen. Liias, the County Road Administration Board (CRAB) provided a proposal 
during the 2023 Legislative session to assist the counties with navigating federal programs and 
obtaining federal grants and other resources for their transportation infrastructure needs.  Often 
the counties, and small cities and towns within them, don’t have the resources or technical 
knowledge to seek out and write grant applications for federal funds.  With the passage of the 
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA), there are tremendous opportunities for local 
jurisdictions at the federal level, including applying directly to the federal government for 
transportation infrastructure grants.  This proposal addresses how CRAB can provide the 
technical assistance needed by local governments to navigate the federal system, pursue grant 
opportunities, and maximize the federal investment made to the transportation infrastructure of 
Washington state. 
 
The Legislature funded this proposal as a four-year trial program.  However, the program was 
funded entirely from Fund 102 – Rural Arterial Trust Account (RATA).  RCW 36.79.020 limits 
the use of RATA funds to county roads in rural areas classified as rural arterials and collectors in 
accordance with the federal functional classification system and the construction of replacement 
bridges funded by the federal bridge replacement program on access roads in rural areas. Out of 
concern that this statutory requirement for the use of RATA funds could limit the implementation 
of the federal fund facilitator program, CRAB requested an informal opinion from the Attorney 
General’s Office.
 
Informal Opinion Request: 

For the upcoming 23-25 budget, we received a request from Sen. Liias to propose the creation of a federal 
funds facilitator program. A copy of the proposal is attached. When the transportation budget was adopted, 
the program was funded from one of our grant programs and we are concerned whether or not our proposal is 
an allowable use of those grant funds.

The proposal was to provide services to aid local government and tribes in the smallest 22 counties with 
applying for and managing direct federal grants. When we submitted the proposal, we were under the 
understanding that this program, if approved by the legislature, would be funded by general Motor Vehicle 
Fuel Tax (MVFT) funds.  These general MVFT funds are allowed to be used for any road purpose in the 
State – including city and county roads.  The Legislature liked the proposal and has funded it in the 23-25 
biennium.  Our concern is that rather than using general MVFT to fund the program, they budgeted the 
funding from MVFT that is set aside specifically for our Rural Arterial Program (RAP).  RCW 
46.68.090(2)(D)(j) directs a portion of the MVFT to be deposited into the Rural Arterial Trust Account 
(RATA) and expended in accordance with RCW 36.79.020. RCW 36.79.020 states that Rural 
Arterial Trust Account funds shall be “expended for (1) the construction and improvement of county rural 
arterials and collectors, (2) the construction of replacement bridges funded by the federal bridge replacement 
program on access roads in rural areas, and (3) those expenses of the board associated with the 
administration of the rural arterial program.”  Our concern is that the statute requires these funds to be used 
in a limited function that is in conflict with the proposal accepted by the Legislature for us to provide services 
to not just counties, but cities and tribes as well. 

 

58



Crab is requesting an opinion whether our proposal, in whole or in part, as accepted by the Legislature is 
an allowable use of RATA funds.

 
Attorney General’s Office Response: 
 

Thanks for providing this. Bryce Brown and I have reviewed the materials you provided as well as 
CRAB’s enabling statute, and we concur with your concerns. As you correctly note, RCW 36.79.020 
limits RATA funds to uses for county rural arterials and collectors, CRAB expenses related to the same, 
and replacement bridges funded by the federal bridge replacement program. As originally proposed by 
CRAB to the legislature, the federal grant assistance program covers not only county governments but also 
city, town, and tribal governments, which do not appear to fall under the uses authorized in RCW 
36.79.020. Since a budget proviso such as this one cannot supersede a codified law such as RCW 
36.79.020, this would seem to create a conflict. 

I recommend contacting OFM for further guidance, and would be happy to make myself available for a 
meeting if that would be helpful. Let me know if you have any further questions or concerns. 

 
CRAB is requesting that the supplemental budget change the funding source of the program from 
Fund 102 – Rural Arterial Trust Account to either Fund 108 – Motor Vehicle Account or Fund 
218 – Multimodal Account.  These two funding source options allow CRAB to provide the 
program to local agencies and Tribes without statutory restrictions.  CRAB further requests that 
the implementation of the program be moved from FY24 to FY25. 

Questions:  Contact Drew Woods at 360.753.5989

Assumptions and calculations 

Estimated costs are based on: 
 Hiring a Transportation Planning Specialist 5 in FY25 
 Hiring a Transportation Planning Specialist 3 in FY26  
 An initial capital outlay for each position to acquire office furniture, new computer, and 

other miscellaneous needs. 
 Travel expenses to meet with the various local agencies, statewide meetings and 

conferences, and national meetings or conferences to stay abreast of federal programs and 
the associated requirements. 

 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 

FTE’s 1 2 2 2 

Salary $103,572 $188,592 $188,592 $188,592

Benefits $32,820 $62,256 $62,256 $62,256

Travel $5,000 $10,000 $12,500 $12,500

Capital Outlay $10,000 $10,000  

Total $151,392 $270,848 $263,348 $263,348 

59



Strategic and performance outcomes 

The initial trial period for this program will be 4-years beginning in FY25.  CRAB will report back 
to the transportation committees on the program status based upon the reporting metrics 
identified below.  In year 4 of the program, CRAB will recommend to the transportation 
committees whether to continue or end the program.  Such recommendation will be made as part 
of CRAB’s biennial budget submittal for the 27-29 biennium. 
 
CRAB will report annually to the transportation committees the status of the program using the 
following performance measures:

 Number of local agency contacts
 Number of grants applications participated on 
 Dollar amount of grants applied for 
 Dollar amount of grants obtained with the assistance of the position. 

Other collateral connections 
 
Intergovernmental – All 39 counties

Stakeholder impacts – N/A

Legal or administrative mandates – N/A
 
Changes from current law – N/A 

 
State workforce impacts – N/A

 
State facilities impacts – N/A 

 
Puget Sound recovery – N/A 

 
Other supporting materials – None 

 
Information technology (IT) – N/A 

60



2023-25 BIENNIAL BUDGET DECISION PACKAGE

Agency: County Road Administration Board 4060 

DP code/title: Increased Motor Vehicle Account Transfer to Rural Arterial Trust Account 
 

Budget period: 2023 - 2025

Budget level: ML 

Agency RecSum text: Increase the transfer from Fund 108 – Motor Vehicle Account to Fund 
102 – Rural Arterial Trust Account.  The amount of increase requested is the amount the transfer 
was decreased in the 2023 supplemental transportation budget. 

Fiscal detail 

Operating Expenditures FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 

Fund 102-1 0 $4,487,000 0 0

Total Expenditures  $4,487,000  

Biennial Totals $4,487,000  

Staffing FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 

FTEs 0 0 0 0

Average Annual 0 0 

Object of Expenditure FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 

Obj. N  $4,487,000  

61



Package description 

The 2023 supplemental budget (ESHB 1125 – Section 1006(4)) decreased the transfer from Fund 
108 – Motor Vehicle Account (MVA) to Fund 102 – Rural Arterial Trust Account (RATA).  The 
transfer amount was decreased from $9,331,000 to $4,844,000 for a total reduction of $4,487,000.  
In 2022, the County Road Administration Board (CRAB) had a call for projects which included 
the $9,331,000 transfer amount.  In April 2023, the CRAB Board approved RATA funding of 
$57,593,070 for partially funded and new county road projects. 
 
Per WAC 136-161-070, the CRAB Board allocates 90% of estimated available funds to projects at 
the April meeting during odd numbered years.  The remaining 10% of available funds are 
allocated at the April meeting during even numbered years.  Due to the timing of the April 2023 
Board meeting and ESHB 1125 being adopted by the Legislature, the reduced transfer amount 
was not factored into the approval of project funding in April 2023.  However, it will be 
accounted for at the April 2024 CRAB Board meeting. 
 
If the transfer from the MVA to RATA is not increased by the $4,487,000 being requested, the 
following projects will be impacted:
 

Project County Legislative 
District 

Lost Funding

County Well Road Benton 16 $1,059,900

Edgewood Drive Clallam 24 $490,000 

NE 182nd Avenue/NE Risto Road Clark 17 $301,328

P.H. 10 Cowlitz 19 $100,000

Bunker Creek Lewis 20 $266,372

Duck Lake Lincoln 13 $584,300

Mountview Lincoln 13 $299,900

280th Street S. Pierce 2 $59,400

Richardson Creek Bridge #300 Snohomish 39 $48,700

Green Hollow Road Phase 3 Whitman 9 $1,075,300 

Questions:  Contact Drew Woods at 360.753.5989

Assumptions and calculations 

Projects and funding impacts are based on the project array adopted by the CRAB Board at the 
April 2023 meeting.  Projects are scored by CRAB staff based on a competitive scoring process 
adopted by the 5 RAP regions.  A complete list of the projects submitted by the counties, the 
project score, and the projects ranking based on the score is available on the CRAB website under 
Resolution 2023-003 found on pages 14-15 of the Board packet.  With the adoption of Resolution 

62



2023-003, the amount of projects that CRAB is under contract to provide the counties is 
$182,631,350. 

Strategic and performance outcomes 

If the Agency request is adopted by the Legislature, 10 county road projects will receive full or 
partial funding. 

Other collateral connections 
 
Intergovernmental – All 39 counties

Stakeholder impacts – N/A

Legal or administrative mandates – N/A

Changes from current law – N/A
 

State workforce impacts – N/A
 

State facilities impacts – N/A 
 

Puget Sound recovery – N/A 
 

Other supporting materials – None 
 

Information technology (IT) – N/A 

63



2023-25 BIENNIAL BUDGET DECISION PACKAGE

Agency: County Road Administration Board 4060 

DP code/title: Legacy Software Replacement Funding Source Change 

Budget period: 2023 - 2025

Budget level: ML 

Agency RecSum text: Amend the revenue source identified in the 23-25 transportation budget 
for the replacement of legacy software programs needed for compliance, grant administration, and 
training programs. This request splits the costs among the agencies three operating accounts:  
Fund 102 – Rural Arterial Trust Account, Fund 108 – Motor Vehicle Account, and Fund 186 – 
County Arterial Preservation Account. 

Fiscal detail 

Operating Expenditures FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 

Fund 102-1 -$184,308 -$184,308 -$192,953 -$192,953

Fund 108 $168,323 $168,323 $176,739 $176,739

Fund 186-1 $15,442 $15,442 $16,214 $16,214

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

Biennial Totals $0 $0 

Staffing FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 

FTEs 0 0 0 0

Average Annual 0 0 

Object of Expenditure FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 

Obj. E $0 $0 $0 $0

Obj. J $0 $0 $0 $0

Revenue FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 

Fund 108 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total Revenue   

Biennial Totals   

64



Package description 

For the 23-25 transportation budget, the County Road Administration Board (CRAB) submitted a 
decision package for a maintenance level budget increase to reflect the added cost of replacing 
legacy software developed in-house with new commercially of the shelf software.  The legacy 
software needed to be replaced to address outdated code that inhibited the ability of the agency to 
keep the software current and not vulnerable to security breaches. 
 
The original request was funded by the Legislature.  However, it was funded entirely by an 
increase in expenditure authority from Fund 102 – Rural Arterial Program.  While grant 
management is a part of the legacy software replacement, it is a small part.  Most of the legacy 
software replacement is for systems in place for county road department compliance (RCW 
36.78.070(2)), submittal of data necessary for the calculation and distribution of Motor Vehicle 
Fuel Tax (RCW 46.68.124), and providing training to county road departments on issues relating 
to county roads and the safe and efficient movement of people and goods over county roads 
through an online learning management system (RCW 36.78.070(4)).  While CRAB provided a 
split of the cost of the replacement software in the 23-25 decision package, that split was not used 
to determine how to fund the legacy software replacement. 
 
CRAB is requesting that the supplemental budget divide these software costs among CRAB’s 
three operating accounts: Fund 102 – Rural Arterial Trust Account, Fund 108 – Motor Vehicle 
Account, and Fund 186 – County Arterial Preservation Account. 

The text below in italics is from the decision package submitted for the 2023 Legislative 
session.  It is included to provide context for the need for the replacement of the legacy 
software.
 
This decision package is for additional funding needed due to the cost of new software (acquired through grants) 
necessary for the County Road Administration Board (CRAB) to fulfill its statutory duties. This new software is 
to replace legacy software developed in-house by CRAB. 
 
Chapter 36.78.070 RCW requires the CRAB to perform the following duties:
 

1. Establish by rule, standards of good practice for the administration of county roads and the efficient movement 
of people and goods over county roads.   

2. Establish reporting requirements for counties with respect to the standards of good practice adopted by the 
board.  

3. Receive and review reports from counties and reports from its executive director to determine compliance with 
legislative directives and the standards of good practice adopted by the board.   

4. Advise counties on issues relating to county roads and the safe and efficient movement of people and goods over 
county roads and assist counties in developing uniform and efficient transportation-related information 
technology resources.  

5. Report annually before the fifteenth day of January, and throughout the year as appropriate, to the state 
department of transportation and to the chairs of the house and senate transportation committees, and to other 
entities as appropriate on the status of county road administration in each county, including one copy to the 
staff of each of the committees. The annual report shall contain recommendations for improving administration 
of the county road programs.   

65



6. Administer the rural arterial program established by chapter RCW, the program funded by the county 
arterial preservation account established by RCW , and the emergency revolving loan program 
created in RCW , as well as any other programs provided for in law. 

Additionally, Chapter 46.68.124 RCW requires CRAB to maintain a master road log which is to be used to 
determine the portion of the Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax (MVFT) distributed to each county.  To create the master 
road log, each county must annually submit their road log for review and approval of CRAB (RCW 
46.68.124(2)). 
 
To perform these duties, CRAB had developed in-house software.  These legacy software solutions exceeded their 
useful life and required replacement.  
 

2004 GIS-Mo 46.68.124(2)

2016 SmartSimple 36.78.070(1),(2),&(3) 

2010 SmartSimple 36.78.070(6) 

N/A Pinnacle 36.78.070(1),(2),(3),&(4) 

To replace these legacy systems, CRAB received the following grants: 
 

Traffic Safety Commission $450,000  

Washington State Assoc. of 
Counties $260,000 Funds from RCW 

46.68.120(3) 

 
Washington State Assoc. of 

Counties $350,000 Funds from RCW 
46.68.120(3) 

 Traffic Safety Commission $101,000  

These grants funded the acquisition of the software solutions and some licensing fees.  The grant funding from the 
Washington State Association of Counties is identified and authorized in the 21-23 Transportation Budget Sec. 
223(2)(b).

GIS-Mo is a Geographic Information System (GIS) based system merging two software suites (VueWorks with
ESRI Roads and Highways) into one system.  GIS-Mo is necessary for the counties to maintain and submit their 
road log to CRAB.  The road log is a compilation of roadway assets such as road name, length, width, federal 
functional classification, average daily traffic, etc. that are used to calculate the MVFT distribution percentage for 
each county.  CRAB also submits the master county road log to WSDOT for inclusion in the state-wide road asset
report submitted annually to the Federal Highway Administration.  GIS-Mo will ensure that the counties and 
CRAB are in compliance with the new federal requirements (Model Inventory of Roadway Elements Fundamental 

66



Data Elements – MIRE FDE) for road asset reporting.  These new FHWA requirements must be in place by 
the end of September 2026. 

SmartSimple is a single software suite that replaces two legacy software packages.  The singular software suite will 
make it easier for CRAB to maintain, review submittals, and train the counties on its use.  SmartSimple also 
allows CRAB to make the various county reports and grant program information available to the counties, the 
public, and policy makers.  
 
Pinnacle is a learning management system (LMS) that provides training videos on a variety of subjects including 
design systems such as Civil 3D.  Civil 3D is the CADD software used by most counties to design their county 
road projects.  In addition to the training already available on the Pinnacle LMS, CRAB can upload it’s own 
custom training videos on the use of GIS-Mo and SmartSimple.  This platform allows CRAB to provide general 
and customized training to the counties that can be viewed on demand when their schedule allows and to limit the 
expense of travel normally associated with this type of training.
 
Questions:  Contact Drew Woods at 360.753.5989

Assumptions and calculations 

To determine the responsibility of the three operating funding sources used by CRAB for 
operating expenses, each software package was evaluated to determine how much each fund used 
each software package.

Fund 102 
Rural Arterial 

Program

Fund 108 
Motor Vehicle 

Account

Fund 186 
County Arterial 

Preservation 

GIS-Mo (VueWorks) 
12.5%

Fund Allocation 
Calculation

75% 
MVFT Allocation 

Calculation 

12.5% 
Fund Allocation 

Calculation
GIS-Mo (ESRI 
Roads and 
Highways) 

12.5%
Fund Allocation 

Calculation

75% 
MVFT Allocation 

Calculation 

12.5% 
Fund Allocation 

Calculation

SmartSimple 50% 
Grant Management

50% 
Standards of Good 

Practice Compliance

Pinnacle LMS  100% 
Training  

Based on the percentages in the table above, the annual costs for the various software packages 
are:
 

67



Total 
Price

Fund 102
Rural Arterial 

Program

Fund 108
Motor Vehicle 

Account

Fund 186
County 
Arterial 

Preservation

GIS-Mo (VueWorks) $51,813 $6,477 $38,859 $6,477 

GIS-Mo (ESRI Roads 
and Highways)

$71,722 $8,965 $53,792 $8,965

SmartSimple $82,500 $41,250 $41,250

Pinnacle LMS $34,422 $34,422  

Annual Total = $240,457 $56,692 $168,323 $15,442 

These prices are for FY24 and FY25.  For outlying biennia, a 5% increase for inflation is assumed. 
 
Strategic and performance outcomes 

This package will allow CRAB to fulfill its Legislative mandate.  Reports and data collected by 
these systems will aid CRAB to prepare it’s annual report to the Legislature on the status of 
administration of county roads throughout the state.   

 
There is not a performance measure submitted for this package.

Other collateral connections 
 
Intergovernmental – All 39 counties

Stakeholder impacts – N/A

Legal or administrative mandates – N/A
 
Changes from current law – N/A 

 
State workforce impacts – N/A

 
State facilities impacts – N/A 

 
Puget Sound recovery – N/A 

 
Other supporting materials – None 

 
Information technology (IT) – N/A 

68



Engineering Division Board Report
October 2023 Meeting

Report Period:  July 22, 2023 to October 20, 2023 

Engineering Staff Highlights: 

Deputy Director – Drew Woods, P.E. 

I would like to start my report by acknowledging the successful launch on October 6th of the 
County Annual Report System (CARS) system in SmartSimple.  From the great project 
management of Eric – to the tireless work of Derek and James troubleshooting, fixing, and 
improving the system – to Derek and Brian creating training videos for the learning management 
system – to Angela ensuring integration with Secure Access Washington (Allows one login for all 
the CRAB systems) – to Scott working on digital signatures and numerous other tasks.  It was a 
true CRAB team effort that should be celebrated.  The same philosophy and hard work with 
Donna and Steve should result in similar successes as we prepare to go live with the RAP Online 
replacement in Smart Simple in the next month. 

We continue to work diligently on a $200,000 grant that CRAB received from the Traffic Safety 
Commission to develop training and resource materials for GIS-Mo.  Cameron and Eric have 
completed getting the scope of the work defined and quotes are almost finalized from DTS 
VueWorks, ESRI, and IMAGINiT Technologies.  As we move into the implementation phase of the 
project, Brian will be taking the project over to work with the contractors to produce the videos 
and resources.  He will then load everything into the Pinnacle LMS system for use by the 
counties. 

In October, the RFP for CRAB’s Grant Effectiveness Study was advertised.  A steering committee 
of CRAB staff and county representatives provided input on the RFP producibles and due dates.  
The goal is to have the final report issued by July 2024 with the consultant giving presentations 
of the findings at the Washington State Association of County Engineers conference in June 
2024 and at the July 2024 CRAB Board meeting.  This will also give staff time to submit any 
budget requests for the 2025 long legislative session resulting from the study findings.  

County Compliance, Support, and Training Manager – Derek Pohle, P.E. 

Considerable time was spent this quarter with preparing to go live with SmartSimple CARS and 
then going live on October 6th.  So far its been a successful roll-out with only minor issues.  Big 
shout out to our IT team and other staff who helped make this happen.  Derek provided the 
counties with a large number of consultations and support this quarter.  Two county visits were 
made with Steve Johnson to do RAP program/project document reviews at Thurston and Pend 
Orielle counties.  Derek had a number of meetings with SAO staff regarding county issues, and 
attended the quarterly SAO Local Government Accounting Committee meeting.  Derek also 
attended DOR training on local tax levies.  Lastly, Derek participated in targeted County Engineer 

69



and the Legislative/Executive Authority and the Road Department training for the Spokane 
County BOCC.  

Grants Program Manager – Steve Johnson, P.E. 

In quarter 3, I reviewed recently completed RAP projects.  We are catching up with these project 
field reviews as well as some project audits.   

Several active RAP projects reached construction this quarter, qualifying for the Match 
Adjustment amendment.  A summary list of these projects, including total RATA allocations, is 
included as an appendix. 

SmartSimple RAP Online replacement efforts have continued, and the effort will increase now 
that the CARS replacement is live. 

Design Systems Manager – Brian Bailey 

This quarter, I traveled to Spokane County and Klickitat County to provide customized, in-person 
training of AutoCAD.  This training was very well received by all who attended and were thankful 
that they did not have to travel to Olympia to receive this training.  As a result, we provided a 
Civil 3D training in Spokane for Spokane, Pend Oreille, Grant and Whitman counties in October. 

I worked with Derek Pohle this quarter to produce training videos in support of the transition of 
C.A.R.S. to SmartSimple.  These videos were posted to our Learning Management System and 
collated into a learning path for the counties. 

As the manager of our Learning Management System, I have assumed the Project Managers role 
of our GIS-Mo Training Grant from WTSC.  We are currently awaiting final proposals from two 
vendors with plans to execute production of training materials mid-November, 2023.  

Road Systems Manager – Mike Clark 

This past quarter I spent several days in SE Washington training Asotin, Franklin, Garfield, and 
Walla Walla County Public Works staff on pavement rating.  In addition, I am in the planning 
stages for one more pavement rating training in NE Washington before the end of the year. I 
have also been working with several counties on the GIS-Mo Pavement Management Program 
and look forward to seeing how they manage this as their systems become more sophisticated.   

This past quarter I have been spending a considerable amount of time with individual counties 
on GIS-Mo training.  This includes introductory, dynamic reports, traffic study updates and MVFT 
Audit Trail closeouts.  

Lastly, towards the end of September I started generating Road Rating Status reports for all 39 
counties. Thank you to everyone who is providing me weekly updates.  

  

70



County Engineer Appointments: 

On August 14th, Jesse Larson, P.E. was appointed to the Pend Oreille County Engineer position.  
Mr. Larson comes to the county from the Washington State Department of Natural Resources. 

 On November 1st, Esco Bell, P.E. will begin work as the new Island County Engineer.   

County Engineer Vacancy Status (WAC 136-012): 

County Effective Date Original Six-Month 
Expiration

Six-Month 
Extension Notes

Asotin June 1, 2023 December 1, 2023 - 
Consultant firm 

providing interim CE 
support

Grays 
Harbor TBD - - 

John Becker, PE 
Interim

Pacific Sept. 15, 2023 March 15, 2024 - 

Grace Barnkow 
resigned, county yet 

to put a plan in 
place to satisfy WAC 

136-12

County Audit Reviews: 

Number Findings Management 
Letters 

County Road 
or ER&R 

CRAB Follow-Up 
Needed

Financial 24 18 12 Yes(1) No

Accountability 4 0 2 Yes(1) No

Fraud 1 1 0 No No

Performance 0 0 0 - - 

Mason County – ML, regarding updating procurement policy 

Klickitat County – ML, need more robust policy/practice in place to detect fraud in fuel use 

Design Systems and Unmanned Aerial Systems (UAS) Update: 

 2024 Road Design Conference 
o We are now soliciting sponsorship for the 2024 Road Design Conference.  This year, we 

have adjusted our sponsorship tiers in anticipation of garnering more support.  Details 
of the conference can be found on our website. 

71



 Training 
o 16 county staff attended three separate training classes offered in Spokane and Klickitat 

Counties. 
o CRAB developed C.A.R.S. training videos and leaning paths in support of our transition 

to SmartSimple. 
 UAS Operations 

o CRAB attended the APWA Fall Conference in Wenatchee earlier in October.  Jane, Jason 
and I represented CRAB with a Trade Show Booth, highlighting our UAS Program.  We 
had substantial interest in who CRAB was and what our agency does.  Many were 
completely unaware of us.  This was an excellent opportunity for exposure in the 
engineering community. 

Learning Management System Update: 

 2023 3rdnd quarter performance 
o The platform has 844 registered users and has had 187 unique logins during the period. 
o Users have accessed 703 individual assets and 432 learning path courses. 
o Of the assets accessed, 605 were CRAB’s custom content in support of GIS-Mo, RAP 

Online, CARS and Sincpac.  This represents 55% of all individual assets consumed in this 
quarter. 

 Using imputed averages for assets and courses, CRAB provided approximately 275 person-hours 
of training. 

 This quarter’s performance numbers are even higher than last.  This is attributed to the roll-out 
of CRAB’s new C.A.R.S. software.  CRAB developed a new learning path in support of this roll-
out, which has driven usage up during the month of October. 

County Visits and Training – Engineering Team: 

 On August 17th and 18th, Brian was in Spokane county to provide design system training. 
 On August 24th and 25th, Brian traveled to Klickitat county to provide design system training.
 On August 29th, Jane and Drew traveled to Wenatchee to present the Project Manager(s) of the 

Year award to Paula Cox, P.E. and Josh Patrick, P.E. for the West Cashmere Bridge project at the 
Chelan County BOCC meeting. 
On August 30th and 31st, Mike was in Garfield county to provide pavement rating training to 
multiple counties. 

 On September 6th, Derek and Steve traveled to Thurston county for a document review, 
 On September 12th, Jane and Drew traveled to Bellingham to: 

o Present the Program Manager(s) of the Year award Gina Miller and Michael Koenan for 
Whatcom county’s maintenance program to at the Whatcom County Council meeting.  
The nomination focused on their work responding to severe weather events in 2022 
while keeping general maintenance activities on schedule. 

o Present the Urban County Engineer of the Year award to Jim Karcher, P.E. 

72



 On September 29th, Derek and Steve traveled to Pend Oreille county for a document review.  A 
closeout letter with their findings is included in the division report. 

 On October 2nd thru the 5th, Brian was in Chelan county for the Fall APWA conference. 
 On October 18th, Mike traveled to Adams county for the Eastern Washington Area County Road 

Supervisor (EWACRS) meeting. 

 

73



74



75



76



77



From: Connie Bowers
To: Woods, Drew (CRAB); Pohle, Derek (CRAB)
Subject: New Island County Public Works Director / County Engineer: Esco Bell
Date: Monday, October 16, 2023 10:48:14 AM
Attachments: image001.png

islandcountylogoem24_3801e712-105a-4b9c-bbc6-79a91001501b.png

External Email

Hi Drew and Derek,
 
I wanted to let you know that Esco Bell has been hired as the new Public Works Director /
County Engineer for Island County.  I’ve heard all good things, and look forward to working
together on the transition of this position.
 

His start date is Nov. 1st  My last day will be Nov. 27th.
 
I’ve included some basic information about him below.
 

He is reported to be a:
A team player
A dynamic, enthusiastic individual with a passion for Public Works
A problem solver
Has a breadth of knowledge
He is a Montana native who has spent the last three decades in the Pacific
Northwest.

 
He has a bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering from Montana State University
He has a Master of Public Administration degree from Portland State University.
He has a professional civil engineering license

 
Public Works Director, Mount Vernon 16 ½ years
Public Works Director, Pacific County
City Engineer, St. Helens, Or.

 
 

 

78



 
Warm regards,
Connie
 

Connie Bowers, P.E.
Public Works Director / County Engineer
Public Works

      Email: ConnieB@islandcountywa.gov | Office: +1(360)679-7346 
      1 NE 7th Street, Coupeville, WA 98239

      Email is subject to public disclosure requirements per RCW 42.56

79



80



81



RAP Program Status: 

82



RAP ACCT

 RURAL ARTERIAL
 PROGRAM
October 2023

PROJECT STATUS:

Billing Phase

Completed

Some RATA paid

No RATA Paid

TOTAL              

FUND STATUS:

     Anticipated Revenue to end of '23 - '25 Biennium:
Fuel tax receipts and interest through June, 2023
Estimated fuel tax, int, Elect Vehicle overages and MVA Transfers July '23 thru June '25

Total estimated revenue
     RAP Expenditures to date:    

To Completed Projects
To Projects in Design or Under Construction
Administration

Total RATA spent
     RAP Obligations:

RATA Balance on Active Projects
RATA $ yet to allocate to Partially funded projects -
Requests for reimbursement - pending
Estimated remaining administration through 2023- 2025 biennium

Total RATA obligated

QTR 3 - 2023 RATA ACTIVITY:

July

August

September

48

15 30

INTEREST +
Cash Rcpts

$66,755.33

37

41

40

$71,835.35

$211,063.51

PROJECT 
PAYMENTS

(1,968,318.59)

(816,230.17)

(1,443,527.31)

(4,228,076.07)

42

4

TOTAL

3

52

11

#

18

26

27

45,093,400            
690,992,513          

1287

1

1,101,164

(63,776.54)

(59,888.81)

(57,170.86)

ADMIN 
CHARGES

27,692,027            

42

'83-'11

1039

1042

'11-'13

(180,836.21)

2 23

50

'13-'15

2 1

'15-'17

28

7

41

'17-'19

1

6

'19-'21

9

$72,472.83

Awaiting
Closeout

TOTALS: $6,747,946.67

$1,615,869.85

$2,887,619.33$25,452,078.89

$27,536,052.07

BEGINNING
 BALANCE

MVFT 
REVENUE

$25,801,548.84

$2,244,457.49

2

1

REVENUE
MONTH

14,401,456

736,085,913

23

$27,536,052.07

$25,452,078.89

$28,351,646.74

ENDING
 BALANCE

146,634,403          

616,715,843          
41,324,894            

672,442,194

175,458,496

30,901                   

'21-'23

4

Current

Biennium

'23-'25

14

84

1149

Complete
31%

Awaiting 
Closeout 6%

Construction
12%

Design
31%

No RATA 
Claimed 21%

Projects Funded
2011 - 2025

10/17/2023

83



Completed Projects: 

84



Cl
ar
k
Co

un
ty

N
E
M
an

le
y
Ro

ad
3R

�
06

13
03

To
ta
lP

ro
je
ct

Co
st
:
$5

,1
99

,0
00

RA
P
Co

nt
rib

ut
io
n:

$1
,8
53

,1
00

Lo
ca
lC

on
tr
ib
ut
io
n:

$3
,3
45

,9
00

N
E
M
an

le
y
Ro

ad
is
a
hi
gh

vo
lu
m
e
Ru

ra
lM

in
or

Co
lle
ct
or
,r
un

ni
ng

no
rt
h
so
ut
h
ne

ar
th
e
Ci
ty

of
Ba

tt
le

G
ro
un

d
w
ith

an
AD

T
of

21
84

.

La
rg
e
qu

an
tit
ie
so

fr
oc
ks

an
d
de

br
is
fil
le
d
th
e
un

de
rs
ize

d
cu
lv
er
ts
an

d
w
at
er

w
as

po
nd

in
g

up
st
re
am

.R
oa

dw
ay

em
ba

nk
m
en

te
ro
si
on

w
as

oc
cu
rr
in
g
fr
om

w
at
er

se
ep

ag
e
th
ro
ug

h
th
e

so
il,
w
hi
ch

is
po

ss
ib
le

ev
id
en

ce
th
at

w
at
er

w
as

pi
pi
ng

ar
ou

nd
th
e
cu
lv
er
td

ue
to

th
e
la
ck

of
cu
lv
er
ts
he

ad
w
al
ls
.M

an
le
y
Ro

ad
pa

ve
m
en

td
is
tr
es
se
s
in
cl
ud

ed
sa
gs
/h
um

ps
,

ra
ve
lin

g/
ag
in
g,
an

d
flu

sh
in
g.
Th

e
co
ns
eq

ue
nc

es
of

no
ta

dd
re
ss
in
g
pa

ve
m
en

tc
on

di
tio

n
an

d
fa
ili
ng

cu
lv
er
ts
w
ou

ld
ha

ve
be

en
on

go
in
g
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n,
hi
gh

er
co
st
s
in

th
e
fu
tu
re

to
ad

dr
es
s,
ad

ve
rs
e
im

pa
ct
s
to

co
m
m
er
ce

an
d
sa
fe
ty

of
th
e
tr
av
el
in
g
pu

bl
ic
.

Th
is
w
as

a
3R

pr
oj
ec
t(
Re

su
rf
ac
e/
Re

st
or
at
io
n/
Re

co
ns
tr
uc

tio
n)
.

Th
e
co
ns
tr
uc

tio
n
pr
oj
ec
ti
nc
lu
de

d
a
st
ru
ct
ur
al
as
ph

al
to

ve
rla

y
w
ith

sa
fe
ty

ed
ge

to
im

pr
ov

e
ho

riz
on

ta
lc
ur
ve
s,
sa
fe
ty

an
d
m
an

eu
ve
ra
bi
lit
y.
Ro

ad
w
ay

st
rip

in
g
an

d
up

da
te
d
pa

ve
m
en

t
m
ar
ki
ng

sh
av
e
be

en
ap

pl
ie
d
w
he

re
ne

ed
ed

.F
ur
th
er

im
pr
ov

em
en

ts
in
cl
ud

ed
re
pl
ac
in
g
th
e

cu
rr
en

tC
M
P
an

d
co
nc
re
te

cu
lv
er
ts

w
ith

th
re
e
ne

w
st
ru
ct
ur
es

sp
an

ni
ng

th
e
cr
ee

k,
pl
ac
in
g

rip
ra
p,

an
d
gr
ad

e
co
nt
ro
ls
tr
uc

tu
re
si
n
th
e
ch
an

ne
l.
Tw

o
ne

w
12

�
ro
ad

w
ay

dr
ai
na

ge
cu
lv
er
ts

ha
ve

al
so

be
en

in
st
al
le
d.

Im
pr
ov

em
en

ts
m
ee

th
yd

ro
lo
gi
c
an

d
pe

rm
itt
in
g
re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
;

al
lo
w

aq
ua

tic
lif
e
an

d
flu

vi
al
de

br
is
to

pa
ss
;a

nd
ac
co
m
m
od

at
e
10

0
ye
ar

flo
od

flo
w
s.

8
5



Cl
ar
k
Co

un
ty

N
E
M
un

ch
Ro

ad
3R

�
06

17
01

To
ta
lP

ro
je
ct

Co
st
:
$1

,4
29

,0
00

RA
P
Co

nt
rib

ut
io
n:

$
95

0,
00

0
Lo
ca
lC

on
tr
ib
ut
io
n:

$
47

9,
00

0

N
E
M
un

ch
Ro

ad
is
a
hi
gh

sp
ee

d,
ru
ra
lm

aj
or

co
lle

ct
or

ru
nn

in
g
no

rt
h
so
ut
h

fr
om

N
E
Ce

da
rC

re
ek

Ro
ad

to
N
E
41

4t
h
St
re
et

an
d
is
us
ed

as
a
co
lle

ct
or

be
tw

ee
n
St
at
e
Ro

ut
e
50

3
an

d
W
oo

dl
an

d,
W
as
hi
ng

to
n.

Th
is
0.
55

m
ile

se
ct
io
n

of
ro
ad

w
ay

is
id
en

tif
ie
d
as

a
no

n
tr
uc

k
ro
ut
e
an

d
ha

s
an

AD
T
of

90
0.

Pa
ve
m
en

td
is
tr
es
se
s
pr
im

ar
ily

in
cl
ud

ed
w
ea

th
er
in
g,

ru
tt
in
g
an

d
al
lig
at
or

cr
ac
ki
ng

,a
nd

an
as
ph

al
to

ve
rla

y
w
as

ne
ed

ed
fo
rs
tr
uc
tu
ra
la
de

qu
ac
y.
Th

er
e

w
er
e
al
so

3
re
po

rt
ed

in
ju
ry

ac
ci
de

nt
s
be

tw
ee

n
20

12
an

d
20

14
.A

ll
ac
ci
de

nt
s

w
er
e
re
la
te
d
to

fix
ed

ob
je
ct
s.

Th
is
w
as

a
3R

pr
oj
ec
t(
Re

su
rf
ac
e/
Re

st
or
at
io
n/
Re

co
ns
tr
uc
tio

n)
.

Th
e
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
in
cl
ud

ed
re
co
ns
tr
uc

tio
n
of

a
ve
rt
ic
al
cu
rv
e
on

N
E
41

4t
h

Ro
ad

,s
ig
ht

di
st
an

ce
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
,g
ua

rd
ra
il
in
st
al
la
tio

n,
re
m
ov

al
of

a
ro
ck

fa
ce

to
im

pr
ov

e
vi
si
bi
lit
y,
an

d
ap

pl
ic
at
io
n
of

a
st
ru
ct
ur
al
as
ph

al
to

ve
rla

y
w
ith

a
sa
fe
ty

ed
ge

to
en

ha
nc
e
sa
fe
ty
,m

an
eu

ve
ra
bi
lit
y,
an

d
lo
ng

ev
ity
.E

xi
st
in
g
ut
ili
ty

po
le
s
an

d
ro
ad

si
de

ob
je
ct
s
ha

ve
be

en
re
lo
ca
te
d
or

pr
ot
ec
te
d
w
he

re
fe
as
ib
le
,

re
du

ci
ng

ac
ci
de

nt
ris

k.

8
6



W
ah

ki
ak
um

Co
un

ty
Co

lu
m
bi
a
St
re
et

O
ve
rla

y,
Se
gm

en
t1

2R
�
35

15
02

To
ta
lP

ro
je
ct

Co
st
:
$2

58
,6
86

RA
P
Co

nt
rib

ut
io
n:

$2
31

,3
41

Lo
ca
lC

on
tr
ib
ut
io
n:

$
27

,3
45

Co
lu
m
bi
a
St
re
et

w
as

fo
rm

er
ly
th
e
St
at
e
Ro

ut
e
to

Ca
th
la
m
et

an
d

w
as

gi
ve
n
to

th
e
co
un

ty
w
he

n
SR

4
w
as

bu
ilt
.M

an
y
pe

op
le
us
e
th
is

ro
ut
e
to

ge
td

ow
n
to

m
ai
n
st
re
et

in
Do

w
nt
ow

n
Ca

th
la
m
et
.T

hi
s

co
un

ty
ro
ad

co
nn

ec
ts
th
e
co
m
m
er
ci
al
ar
ea

s
on

SR
4
w
ith

th
e

do
w
nt
ow

n
co
m
m
er
ci
al
ar
ea

st
ha

ta
re

in
th
e
to
w
n.

Ye
ar
s
of

us
e
an

d
Ci
ty

w
at
er

&
se
w
er

pr
oj
ec
ts

ha
d
le
ft
th
e
ro
ad

su
rf
ac
e
in

ne
ed

of
a
ne

w
dr
iv
in
g
su
rf
ac
e.

Th
is
w
as

a
2R

pr
oj
ec
t(
Re

su
rf
ac
e/
Re

st
or
at
io
n)
.

Th
e
ro
ad

no
w
ha

s
a
sm

oo
th

dr
iv
in
g
su
rf
ac
e
an

d
a
m
uc

h
be

tt
er

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
.I
ti
s

sa
fe
ra

nd
ha

s
be

tt
er

dr
ai
na

ge
.A

la
rg
e
dr
ai
na

ge
st
ru
ct
ur
e
th
at

w
as

ab
ov

e
gr
ou

nd
ha

s
be

en
re
m
ov

ed
an

d
is
no

w
at

gr
ou

nd
le
ve
l.

8
7



W
ha

tc
om

Co
un

ty
Ea
st
Sm

ith
Ro

ad
2R

�
37

19
03

To
ta
lP

ro
je
ct

Co
st
:
$2

,2
46

,0
51

RA
P
Co

nt
rib

ut
io
n:

$2
,0
21

,4
46

Lo
ca
lC

on
tr
ib
ut
io
n:

$
22

4,
60

5

Ea
st
Sm

ith
Ro

ad
is
on

e
of

th
e
la
rg
es
tE

as
t
W
es
ta

rt
er
ia
ls
in

th
e

W
ha

tc
om

Co
un

ty
ro
ad

sy
st
em

.T
he

ro
ad

ca
rr
ie
s
a
la
rg
e
nu

m
be

ro
f

ve
hi
cl
es

da
ily

an
d
se
rv
es

as
an

al
te
rn
at
iv
e
ro
ut
e
to

SR
54

2,
M
t

Ba
ke
rH

ig
hw

ay
,d

ur
in
g
tim

es
of

co
ng

es
tio

n
or

cl
os
ur
e.

E
Sm

ith
Ro

ad
's
pa

vi
ng

su
rf
ac
e
w
as

ex
hi
bi
tin

g
w
ea

ra
s
ex
pe

ct
ed

fo
r

its
ag
e
an

d
tr
af
fic

vo
lu
m
e.

Th
e
ro
ad

ne
ed

ed
to

be
re
pa

ve
d
w
ith

H
M
A
to

re
fr
es
h
th
e
w
ea

rin
g
co
ur
se
.

Th
is
w
as

a
2R

pr
oj
ec
t(
Re

su
rf
ac
e/
Re

st
or
at
io
n)
.

Th
e
pr
oj
ec
tw

as
su
cc
es
sf
ul
ly
pa

ve
d
in

Su
m
m
er

of
20

20
.

8
8



Staff Project Actions Taken: 

89



County Road Administration Board – October 26, 2023 
 

Project Actions Taken by CRAB Staff 

I.  Staff Action Douglas County – Scope Change request for McNeil Canyon Road (0922-01) 
 
Douglas County requested a scope change for their McNeil Canyon Road RC project.  The request 
is based on findings during preliminary design that lead to increasing the project length from 0.9 
miles to 1.15 miles.  The additional length will allow the elimination of a curve, and a better 
transition to existing alignments and widths.  The change in length did not alter the project scoring, 
and therefore did not change the project ranking in the original funding array. 
 
The director forwarded a letter on September 8, 2023 accepting the scope change and modifying the 
project beginning and ending mileposts. 
 
I.  Staff Action Ferry County – Scope Change request for Bridge Creek Section 13 (1017-02) 
 
Ferry County requested a scope change for their Bridge Creek Section 13 3R project.  The request is 
based on the discovery that original mapping of beginning and ending mileposts were incorrect.  
The revised beginning and ending mileposts corrects the project location and matches the original 
intent of the project, based on the original prospectus vicinity map.  The correction does not change 
the project ranking in the original funding array. 
 
The director forwarded a letter on October 4, 2023 accepting the scope change and modifying the 
project beginning and ending mileposts. 
 
 

90



Previous Board Actions Update: 

91



County Road Administration Board – October 26, 2023 
 
 

I. Updates on previous Board actions - Projects 
 

 Columbia County – Lower Hogeye (0713-02) construction lapse extension to 
April 2025 

o Columbia County has begun a county forces construction phase for clearing 
and grubbing, which meets the requirement to get the project to construction 
by April 2025. 

  

 
 

Asotin County – Snake River Road project termination and waiver of payback 
o Asotin County has been awarded RATA funding in our current cycle (’23-

’25), aiming to construct Phase 1 – a portion of the original project.  Phases 
2-4 (the remainder of the project) are still seeking funding. They have been 
approved on the 2023 STIP for the MPO to request additional federal 
funding.  This entire project length will be conducted in four phases,
scheduled to be completed within the timeline established in the waiver of 
payback agreement.

o The cost estimate for Phase 1 has increased significantly between the 
county’s 90% estimate and the 95% estimate.  The county is looking to 
reduce costs through design modifications, and will also reach out to 
WSDOT and the MPO for additional funding.  The project is scheduled for 
bid in December, however the county does not currently have the funding 
necessary to cover the increased costs.   

92



Skagit County’s Francis Road extension 
o Skagit County is “federalizing” the Right-Of-Way phase of the project in 

anticipation of securing federal funding.  Anticipating going to AD by March 
2024 (or sooner), once federalizing of the ROW is approved. 

o The County was awarded $1.75 million in HSIP grant funding in September 
2023, with no match if this funding is obligated before April 30, 2026. 

o The County will also plan on using CAPP funds to supplement eligible 
portions of paving for the project. 

 Cowlitz County’s South Cloverdale Road extension 
o Cowlitz County’s South Cloverdale Road project was granted a two-year 

extension to reach construction. 
o The county is continuing the Right-Of-Way phase processes and 

requirements necessary for this project. 
 
II. Updates on previous Board actions – Emergency Loan Projects 

 Columbia County Emergency Loan for Road, Bridge, and Streambank Repairs 
damaged in Flooding Event (Original loan of $500,000)  

o The amended contract term for the original loan was extended and is due 
April 2024.   

o The County has been informed that expected flood reimbursement payment 
should be delivered to the County shortly, allowing them to repay the loan 
ahead of the due date, however remain waiting for the payment from FEMA. 
The County continues to work with FEMA to complete documentation. 

o Including simple interest, the single loan amount still due is now $518,908.33 
 

Current ELP account balance is $2,597,536.52 
 

III. Updates on previous Board actions – Resolution 2022-010 – Allowing additional RATA 
funding for projects reaching construction in 2023/2024 
 

The following projects were granted contract amendments for reaching construction in 2023: 
 (projects in Bold are new amendments this quarter) 

 
 Chelan County – Goodwin Road #0419-02    $154,000 
 Chelan County – Chumstick Highway #0421-01 (Final)  $122,000 
 Columbia County – Rose Gulch Road – Vernon Smith Bridge $  52,500 
 Ferry County – Boulder Creek Sec. 1 #1015-02   $190,000 
 Ferry County – Inchelium Hiway Rehabilitation   $  83,300 
 Grays Harbor County – Garrard Creek Road Realignment $173,000 
 Mason County – Old Belfaire Hwy #2319-02   $232,000 
 Okanogan County – Old 97 #2419-02    $204,000 
 Spokane County – Wheeler Rd #3221-01    $142,700 
 Stevens County – Swenson South #3317-01    $350,000 
 Whitman County – Almota Road (Phase 3)   $383,333 
 Yakima County – Independence Rd – Fordyce to Maple #3917-01 $200,300 

 
Total to date:  $2,287,133 

93



Information Services Division Report
Eric Hagenlock, IT Director | OCTOBER 26th, 2023

CARS Go-Live
-as-a-

th Arterial 

st th -
-

Figure 1County CARS Onboarding Map

GIS-Mo
GIS-

94



th

GIS- nt to ease this 

t

GIS-

Figure 2 GIS-Mo Road Map

GIS
CRAB GIS -

have

th

th, 2023 Their 
-

  

95



th

-
-

To highlight
-

RATA (green)

Figure 3CRAB Funded Roads

Systems & Security

2023 
the state CISO

recog   

s that 
alert to these 

96



Figure 4Phishing Campaign Results

Training & Support
CRAB 

- Both have 
th

th   GIS-
th

on- -

Figure 5PinnacleLMS GIS- Unique Views

97



CRAB IT has 

Figure 6 Approved & Requested Projects by Strategic Goal

IT Compliance

Each year, agency partners are asked to provide 

compliance with selected statewide policies that 
support statewide technology programs.  

Washington state residents depend on us to keep their data safe and secure, and 

upport 

presents an opportunity for 
agency business and IT leadership to come together as strategic partners and engage 

WILLIAM KEHOE, STATE CIO

CRAB OCIO A IT C   ART - D S 30TH, 2023; ART 

6 D D ST,   A

98


	AgendaOct2023(v9).pdf
	2023




